? “—,RSEy l/

Y

4
SSTAR CO“\‘:\

NOTICE OF A MEETING
(In compliance with Sec. 551.041, Et. Seq., Tex. Gov’t. Code)

*
-\?}\1 CI]-},
’If/i‘y * 39'{\

NOTICE is hereby given that the City of Jersey Village Capital Improvements Advisory
Committee will hold a meeting on April 10, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. at the Civic Center Meeting Room,
16327 Lakeview Drive, Jersey Village, Texas 77040.

A quorum of the City of Jersey Village City Council may be in attendance at this meeting.
ITEM(S) to be discussed and acted upon by the Committee are listed on the attached agenda.
AGENDA

A. Open Meeting. Call the meeting to order and the roll of appointed officers will be taken.
Chairperson

B. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS - Any person who desires to address the Capital Improvements
Advisory Committee regarding an item on the agenda will be heard at this time. In compliance
with the Texas Open Meetings Act, unless the subject matter of the comment is on the agenda,
the City staff and Committee Members are not allowed to discuss the subject. Each person is
limited to five (5) minutes for comments to the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee.

C. Consider approval of the minutes for the meeting held on November 29, 2023. Lorri Coody,
City Secretary

D. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning fiscal year 2023-2024 growth rate, capital
improvement projects completed, and impact fees collected, and review the capital
improvements projects identified in the Capital Improvements Plan in order to prepare the
Capital Improvements Advisory Committee’s April 2024 Semi-Annual Progress Report for
presentation to City Council on April 22, 2024. Miesha Johnson, Community Development
Manager

E. Adjourn
CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify in accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act, the Agenda is posted
for public information, at all times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin
board located at City Hall, 16327 Lakeview, Jersey Village, TX 77040, a place convenient and readily accessible to
the general public at all times, and said Notice was posted on the following date and time: March 28, 2024 at 1:00
p.m. and remained so posted until said meeting was convened.

\“umm“,

\\ Q ERSE}, ’/,

Lorri Coody, City Secretary

Pursu'szﬂpqﬁ mﬂ‘% 06, Penal Code (trespass by license holder with a concealed handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter
H, Chapter 411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not enter this property with a concealed handgun."

"Pursuant to Section 30.07, Penal Code (trespass by license holder with an openly carried handgun), a person licensed under
Subchapter H, Chapter 411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not enter this property with a handgun that is carried
openly."

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID


http://www.jerseyvillagetx.com/

CITIZENS’ COMMENTS - Any person who desires to address the Capital Improvements
Advisory Committee regarding an item on the agenda will be heard at this time. In compliance
with the Texas Open Meetings Act, unless the subject matter of the comment is on the agenda,
the City staff and Committee Members are not allowed to discuss the subject. Each person is
limited to five (5) minutes for comments to the Capital Improvements Advisory Conmunittee.

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JERSEY VILLAGE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

November 29, 2023 — 6:00 p.m.

THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE (CIAC) OFTHE CITY OF
JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS, CONVENED ON NOVEMBER 29, 2023, AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE
CIVIC CENTER AUDITORIUM, 16327 LAKEVIEW DRIVE, JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS.

A. The meeting was called to order at 6:15 p.m. and the roll of appointed officers was taken.
Committee Members present were:

Rick Faircloth, Chairman Debra Mergel, Committee Member
Eric Henao, Committee Member Charles A. Butler, 111, Committee Member
David L. Lock, Committee Member Nestor Mena, Committee Member

Cinthia Kopinitz, Committee Member
Drew Wasson, Council Liaison, was present at this meeting.

Staff in attendance: Lorri Coody, City Secretary; Justin Pruitt, City Attorney; Austin Bleess,
City Manager; Robert Basford, Assistant City Manager, and Miesha Johnson, Community
Development Manager.

B. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS

Any person who desires to address the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee
regarding an item on the agenda will be heard at this time. In compliance with the Texas
Open Meetings Act,-unless the subject matter of the comment is on the agenda, the City
staff and Committee Members are not allowed to discuss the subject. Each person is
limited to five (5) minutes for comments.

There were no Citizens’ Comments.
C. Consider approval of the minutes for the meeting held on May 17, 2023.

Committee Member Butler moved to approve the minutes for the meeting held on May 17,
2023. Committee Member Henao seconded the motion. The vote follows:

Ayes: Committee Members Henao, Lock, Mergel, Butler, Kopinitz, and Mena
Chairman Faircloth

Nays: None
The motion carried.

D. Discuss and take appropriate action regarding the preparation and presentation of
written comments to City Council, concerning the draft update study prepared by
Quiddity Engineering, LLC concerning the land use assumptions, -capital
improvements plan and impact fees for the City of Jersey Village.

Background information on the item is as follows: The responsibilities of the Capital
Improvements Advisory Committee (CIAC) are to:

1. Advise and assist the political subdivision in adopting land use assumptions;
2. Review the capital improvements plan and file written comments;

$20T ‘01 TIIdV NO d'TdH A9 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMIVd ONLLAAIN DVID



Page 2 of 4 CIAC Meeting Minutes — November 29, 2023

»ow

Monitor and evaluate implementation of the capital improvements plan;

File semiannual reports with respect to the progress of the capital improvements plan
and report to the political subdivision any perceived inequities in implementing the plan
or imposing the impact fee; and

Advise the political subdivision of the need to update or revise the land use
assumptions, capital improvements plan, and impact fee.

The purpose of today’s meeting is to meet with Consultants from Quiddity Engineering, LLC
to discuss and take appropriate action regarding the preparation and presentation of written
comments to City Council concerning the 2023 draft update study on the land use
assumptions, capital improvements plan and impact fees.

Sec. 395.014 of the Local Government Code outlines the elements of a capital improvements
plan as follows: (a) The political subdivision shall use qualified professionals to prepare the
capital improvements plan and to calculate the impact fee.

The capital improvements plan and impact fee calculations must contain specific
enumeration of the following items:

1.

a description of the existing capital improvements within the service area and the costs
to upgrade, update, improve; expand;.or replace the improvements to meet existing
needs and usage and stricter safety, efficiency, environmental, or regulatory standards,
which shall be prepared by a qualified professional.engineer licensed to perform the
professional engineering services in this state;

an analysis of the total capacity, the level of current usage, and commitments for usage
of capacity of the existing capital improvements, which shall be prepared by a qualified
professional engineer licensed to perform the professional engineering services in this
state;

a description of all or the parts of the capital improvements or facility expansions and
their costs necessitated by and attributable to new development in the service area based
on the approved dand use assumptions, which shall be prepared by a qualified
professional engineer licensed to perform the professional engineering services in this
state;

a definitive table establishing the specific level or quantity of use, consumption,
generation, or discharge of a service unit for each category of capital improvements or
facility expansions and an equivalency or conversion table establishing the ratio of a
service unit to various types of land uses, including residential, commercial, and
industrial;

the total number of projected service units necessitated by and attributable to new
development within the service area based on the approved land use assumptions and
calculated in accordance with generally accepted engineering or planning criteria;

the projected demand for capital improvements or facility expansions required by new
service units projected over a reasonable period of time, not to exceed 10 years; and
A plan for awarding:

(A)a credit for the portion of ad valorem tax and utility service revenues generated
by new service units during the program period that is used for the payment of
improvements, including the payment of debt, that are included in the capital
improvements plan; or

$20T ‘01 TIIdV NO d'TdH A9 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMIVd ONLLAAIN DVID



Page 3of 4 CIAC Meeting Minutes — November 29, 2023

(B)in the alternative, a credit equal to 50 percent of the total projected cost of
implementing the capital improvements plan.

This item is to prepare and vote on your written comments concerning the Draft Capital
Improvements Plan & Impact Fee Study 2023 Update Report.

Consultant Michael Gurka presented a PowerPoint presentation on<the 2023 Capital
Improvements Plan & Impact Fee Study Update. The presentation included.information on
the following items:

Purpose

Agenda for the Meeting

Historical Population

Projected Growth

Current Land Use Exhibit

Future Land Use Exhibit

Water System Overview

Existing Water System Analysis
Water System Projections

Water Capital Improvements Plan
Wastewater System Overview
Wastewater System Flow Projections
Wastewater System Projections
Wastewater Capital Improvements Plan
Service Units

Water Impact Fee Calculations
Wastewater Impact Fee Calculations
2020vs 2023 Impact Fee Comparison
Maximum Assessable Impact Fees
Impact Fee Comparison

VVVVVVVVVVVVVVYVVVVVYY

In receiving the presentation, the Committee asked Mr. Gurka several questions, to which he
responded accordingly.

There were questions about the meter sizes. Also, there was discussion about the
development up.and down Jones Road and the new Day Care and how it is determined which
meters the various developments will need. Mr. Bleess stated that there are schedules that
regulate meter size in conjunction with development needs.

There was a question about the process for tonight. City Manager Bleess stated that tonight
is for the Committee to produce Written Comments that will be given to City Council. City
Council will-then conduct a public hearing and make a ruling on the Study.

There were questions about the current utility system and if it is going to be updated due to
the recent bond election. City Manager Bleess explained how this will work. There were
also questions about the projected development over the next five (5) years. Mr. Gurka
explained how the study predicts this development and how it will affect the water and
wastewater systems of the City. He explained that usage for development is strictly tied to
the type of businesses being developed. For example, an apartment complex will use the

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



Page 4 of 4 CIAC Meeting Minutes — November 29, 2023

systems much more than say a Fed-Ex Facility that focuses on trucking and distribution of
goods.

There were questions about once development occurs on the south side of US HWY 290 and
facilities are built, will existing residents/occupants be permitted to join in on those services.
City Manager Bleess explained that a City cannot force people to join our system. There
were also questions about those who currently have water wells. Mr. Gurka stated that there
is a State Law that governs well water usage. However, Municipal Water Systems mostly
operate on surface water, but the law says that if there is a problem with the surface water,
the Municipality must have the capability to provide water to its customers. Therefore, it
must have the well capacity or storage capacity to service these customers in times of need.

Some members felt that the development being projected on the South side of US HWY 290
will not happen. Mr. Gurka explained that the study is based upon an educated guess because
actual development over the coming years is unknown. The Committee discussed the
possibility of future development and how the development will affect the impact fee eligible
projects.

There were questions about the wastewater impact fee eligible projects. The Committee
discussed these projects and the costs-associated with expanding the current facilities as
opposed to building new facilities. "Mr. Gurka explained the options.

The Committee reviewed the proposed rates for the City in comparison to other cities in the
area. City Attorney Pruitt explained the law that regulates impact fees and why this process
is important.

With no further discussion on the matter, Committee Member Butler moved to approve the
Written Comment Form included in the meeting packet with the Draft Capital Improvements
Plan & Impact Fee Study 2023 Update Report attached as Exhibit A. Committee Member
Henao seconded the motion: The vote follows:

Ayes: Committee Members Henao, Lock, Mergel, Butler, Kopinitz, and Mena
Chairman Faircloth

Nays: None
The motion carried.

Upon passage of this motion, the Written Comments Report was signed for presentation to
Council. A copy of the City of Jersey Village Capital Improvements Advisory Committee’s
Written Comments to the 2023 Update Study Concerning Land Use Assumptions, Capital
Improvements Plan, and Impact Fees Prepared by Quiddity Engineering, LLC is attached
hereto as Exhibit “A.”

. Adjourn

g,

With no additional business to conduct the Committee adjourned at 7:48 p.m.

N
N

Lorri Coody, City Secretary

“\nlmlu,ll
1,
VY%

&
)

%, S,
%y, AR GO,
Kty

7,
S RS
i3/l 582
iy « %z
NP e §

;Z....-»"“\\\ \\\\

4,
o JERSE n,
\’\*,S‘:"'""'"}: k/(",

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



Exhibit A to the November 29, 2023 Minutes of the
Capital Improvement Advisory Committee
A copy of the City of Jersey Village Capital Improvements Advisory Committee’s

Written Comments to the 2023 Capital Improvements Plan & Impact Fee Study Update
Prepared Quiddity Engineering, LLC

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



\ERSE)
o %

*

N
SR co““‘!\

<~ *Ciry

¥
My 4 30¥

CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS « ADVISORY
COMMITTEE’S WRITTEN COMMENTS TO THE 2023 UPDATE STUDY
CONCERNING LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN, AND
IMPACT FEES PREPARED BY QUIDDITY ENGINEERING, LLC.

On November 29, 2023, the City of Jersey Village Capital Improvements Advisory Committee
met with Consultants from Quiddity Engineering, LLC in order.to review and discuss the 2023
Update Study concerning land use assumptions, capital improvements plan and impact fees, which
was prepared by these Consultants.

The Committee reviewed all aspects of the Water and Wastewater Impact Fee Study conducted by
Quiddity Engineering, LLC, including the following areas:

o Land Use Assumptions
= Historical and Projected Populations
= Growth Projections
= Current and Future Land Use Exhibit
o Water System Capital Improvements Plan
= Existing Water System
= Water Demand Projections
= Water System Capacity Analysis
= Water Capital Improvements Plan
o Wastewater System Capital Improvements Plan
= Existing Wastewater System
= \Wastewater Flow Projections
= Wastewater System.Capacity Analysis
=  Wastewater Capital Improvements Plan
o Impact Fee Analysis
= Service Units
= Water & Wastewater Attributable Improvements
= Maximum Impact Fee Calculation

After duly considering all the information before it, the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee
files these written ‘comments recommending that City Council approve the Draft Capital
Improvements Plan & Impact Fee Study 2023 Update Report attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Respectfully submitted, this 29" day of November 2023.

“\\llllm“,/

s/ Rick Faircloth, Chairman
ATTEST: R

s/Lorri Coody, City Secretary

\0(. MERSE) 7,

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



Exhibit A

Draft Capital Improvements Plan and Impa
2023 Update Report

ee Study

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



Capital Improvements Plan and Impact Fee Study
2023 Update

City of Jersey Villas

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning
Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.
License No.:_120374
It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for|

Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications,
Loans or Grants.

NOVEMBER 2023
QUIDDITY JOB NO. 05440-0013-01

L_I QUIDDITY
ENGINEERING

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

10

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
Capital Improvements Plan and Impact Fee Study
2023 Update

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN AND IMPACT FEE STUDY
CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ....ccuuiiiiiiuniiiiinniiiiiieniiiiiimnsiiiiiimssiiiiessiiiieesssistesissssssasssssssessses
1.0 INTRODUCTION......cetuuuiiirinnnniiiitnnniiiennnniiieemnnsiinitnssiineessseseesssssstosssssesseessassssatnees
2.0 PLANNED GROWTH PROJECTIONS......cceuiiirimmnniininnnniiniennninnecnnssencesnssesseesssasssens
R R 0 U I ] e s
2.2 EXISTING SYSTEM ..ottt sieessaanasssissesesssanasssssssesssnanes
2.3 LAND USE PLAN........ciittiiimmnnnniiiiiiiieiennnetiiiesieeiennsssssssbosetseennssssssssssesessssssssssssssessanssns
2.4 FUTURE GROWTH....c.ciitiiuiiiiiiiniiniiiiiniinieeniinaseessiansssseensssssennnsisnennssssnessssissenssssssenes
2.4.1 5-YEAR PROJECTION CONNECTIONS ......ccccsteremmmnnirirnnniriennnnnnsinnsssinnnsienennnsienenes

2.4.2 10-YEAR PROJECTION CONNECTIONS......ccccettemmniorirnnnnininnaibonsennennennnnienennnsinnenes

3.0 WATER SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN ....cccciieeesiimmnninenenirennninenninennnnes
3.1 EXISTING WATER SYSTEM EVALUATION ......cccceuuuiriimuniiinmnnnssernnniiiennnsisiesnssienennssisnenes
3.1.1 EXISTING WATER INFRASTRUCTURE ......cccuuuiriimuniiiinmtnnnnnnioninennnnienennssisnennssinnenes

3.1.2 EXISTING WATER DEMANDS:....cccitiineeriimnniirinmnniirennnniiiennsssssinnmsisnennassssensssssnenes

3.1.3 EXISTING WATER SYSTEM CAPACITY ANALYSIS ......cceuiiriimniiirinnasiciennnninnennnninnen

3.2 FUTURE WATER SYSTEM EVALUATION...........ccceummmmeiitinnecennnnnnniiiiinsnmmenssnsiieiseeeennses
3.2.1 METHODOLOGY OF PROJECTED WATER DEMANDS........cc000cccmmmmmnniiiiiiennnnnnnnnnnes

3.2.2 5-YEAR WATER PROJECTIONS.....ccoeeteuuiriuabuniinennnnirernnniinnsnnsnereennsienennssienenassisnenes

3.2.3 10-YEAR WATER PROJECTIONS.....cccceieitmmiunniiiiiiiiiiieneniiinnnieinsnneseinsnseessssassssenes

3.2.4 FUTURE WATER SYSTEM CAPACITY ANALYSIS.......cccciiiiiiiniiiiiciinnneennsneeaaaene,

3.3 WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN....ccooiu it esessneaas s e esenaaes
4.0 WASTEWATER SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN ......ccceviiiriimnniiiinnnnninees
4.1 EXISTING WASTEWATER SYSTEM EVALUATION .......ccceuuiiiiiiniiiiiiecscnnnenennneneiscnnnenns
4.1.1 EXISTING WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE .........ccorrriiriiniiinniiiinninccinnneennnne,

4.1.2 EXISTING WASTEWATER FLOWS......ccccueoiiiiiicciinnesinnneccnnnsecssnsaessne e senanes

4.1.3 EXISTING WASTEWATER SYSTEM CAPACITY ANALYSIS .....ccccoiirmiiimmnnnniciiinieennnaaa,

4.2 FUTURE WASTEWATER SYSTEM EVALUATION .....ccceiiieeiniiiiiiiiiiiinenncnnnensnssesessnnnenns
4.2.1 METHODOLOGY OF WASTEWATER FLOW PROJECTIONS .......ccorriimmenereeiiirreennnnns

4.2.2 5-YEAR WASTEWATER PROJECTIONS. .......cceireieeiiiiiiniiiiinineiicinneeensssaasesnesseessnnnes

4.2.3 10-YEAR WASTEWATER PROJECTIONS ......coeeuuiiiriimnniiriinniinieneiininneniinieneninneenene

4.2.4 FUTURE WASTEWATER SYSTEM CAPACITY ANALYSIS ......ccovvemuiiriimnniiriennninnennane

4.3 WASTEWATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN ....ccccortmmuiirinmeiiniineinnienennnnenenneenane
5.0 IMPACT FEE ANALYSIS.....ottuuiiiriimiiniinniiiniieiniinaiiiinssiniesssieessssseesssnen
5.1 SERVICE UNITS .....couiiiiiiiiiiniiiniiniiiieesinnnsenssneeiesss s ssssaaaesssssssssssssasssssssssssssananes
5.2 WATER AND WASTEWATER ATTRIBUTABLE IMPROVEMENTS ......c.ceeuiirirnnniirennnninnenes
5.3 MAXIMUM IMPACT FEE CALCULATION .....ccoirriimmmmeinniiiniiiiniieeeeiinnnesenssesessssnnsseessnanes
6.0 IIMPACT FEE ADOPTION .....ceeuuuiiiiimnniniinnniiiniinniiiieinasiiisiinssiiieesssiseessssssesnssessens

Pagei

11

$20T ‘01 TIIdV NO d'TdH A9 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMIVd ONLLAAIN DVID



CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
Capital Improvements Plan and Impact Fee Study
2023 Update

PwnNE

OmMmMooO®Pr

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN AND IMPACT FEE STUDY
CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE

LIST OF EXHIBITS

Current Land Use Plan

Future Land Use Plan

Water System Improvements
Wastewater System Improvements

LIST OF ATTACHME

Texas Local Government Code Chapter 395
Existing Water Plant Capacity Analysis 2 ’
Projected 2028 Water Plant Capacity Analysis

Projected 2033 Water Plant Capacity Analysis

Water Capital Improvement Plan Projects Cost Estimates \
Wastewater Capital Improvement Plan Projects Cost Estimates

City of Houston — Impact Fee Service\ﬁ Equivalent Table

|
\ VY
 §
\\

N
Ve
‘(

L 3

Page ii

12

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
Capital Improvements Plan and Impact Fee Study
2023 Update

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This study was performed to update the City of Jersey Village’s (the City’s) water and wastewater system
impact fees in accordance with the Texas Local Government Code (TLGC) Chapter 395: The population
growth over the next 5-years and 10-years were projected, water and wastewater system analyses were
completed, and the City’s Land Use Plan and Capital Improvements Plans (CIP) were updated per the

requirements of TLGC Chapter 395.

Based on the City’s 5-year growth projections and associated water and wastewater demand values, a
total of 254 new physical connections which equate to 1,091 service units and 1,368 people are
anticipated being added to the existing water and wastewater system by the year 2028. Based on the
City’s 10-year growth projections and associated water and wastewater.demand values, a total of 1,000
new physical connections which equate to 4,281 service units and 3,931 people are anticipated being
added to the existing water and wastewater system by the year 2033. The existing water and wastewater
facility and utility capacities were evaluated, and improvements were identified to serve the projected
developments over the next ten (10) years. The identified improvements were quantified into project
groups based on time sensitivity or proximity related to the new development. The associated costs for
these improvements are also included in the Water and Wastewater Capital Improvements Plan. Only
improvement costs directly related to new growth or redevelopment can be accounted for in eligible
impact fee costs, so each project group was estimated based on the amount attributable to new

development. The project group.name; scope of work, costs, and sequencing are subject to change.

The projected water and wastewater demands for new development were converted to service units to
align with the City of Houston Impact Fee Service Unit Equivalent Table, dated August 26, 2019. The
baseline assumption per 1 service unit is 250 gallons per day for water demand and 200 gallons per day
for wastewater demand. The total service units projected to be added to the City ‘s water and wastewater
system would be calculated based on the City of Houston Impact Fee Service Unit Equivalent table per
development type as referenced in Attachment G. Based on recent opinion of probable cost estimates,
the total water system improvement costs is estimated at $29,702,000 and the total wastewater
improvements’ cost is estimated at $39,185,000. With a 50% reduction of the maximum eligible
recoverable cost, the total water improvements cost eligible for impact fees is estimated at $20,359,200

and the total wastewater improvements cost eligible for impact fees is estimated at $20,659,400.

Page iii

13

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



1.0 INTRODUCTION

In June 2023, the City of Jersey Village (the “City”) authorized Quiddity to update the previously approved
2020 Capital Improvements Plan, Future Land Use Plan, and Impact Fee Study for the City’s water and
wastewater systems. The purpose of this report is to calculate water and wastewater impact fees for the
City in accordance with Texas Local Government Code (TLGC) Chapter 395 (§395), as shown in Attachment
A. TLGC §395 defines an impact fee as “a charge or assessment imposed by a political subdivision against
new development in order to generate revenue for funding or recouping the costs of capital

improvements.” Impact fees may be imposed to pay for capital improvements, including and limited to:

e (Construction contract price;

® Surveying and engineering fees;

e land acquisition costs, including land purchases, court awards and costs, attorney’s fees, and
expert witness fees; and

® Fees actually paid or contractedto be paid.to an independent qualified engineer or financial
consultant preparing or updating the capital improvements plan.

Impact fees cannot be used to pay for:

e Construction, acquisition, or expansion of public facilities other than capital improvements
identified in the capital improvements plan;

® Repair, operation, or maintenance of existing or new capital improvements;

e Upgrading, updating, expanding, or replacing existing capital improvements to serve existing
development in orderto meet stricter standards;

e Upgrading, updating, expanding, or replacing existing capital improvements to provide better
service toexisting develepments;

e Administrative.and operating costs of the political subdivision; and

® Principal payments and interest or other finance charges.

Impact fees must be assessed for new developments on projects identified in the Capital Improvements
Plan (CIP) and cannot be used for any rehabilitation project to serve existing development. "New
development" is defined as the subdivision of land; the construction, reconstruction, redevelopment,
conversion, structural alteration, relocation, or enlargement of any structure; or any use or extension of
the use of land; any of which increases the number of service units. "Service unit" is defined as a
standardized measure of consumption, use, generation, or discharge attributable to an individual unit of

development calculated in accordance with generally accepted engineering or planning standards and

| QUIDDITY
14

Page 1

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



based on historical data and trends applicable to the political subdivision in which the individual unit of
development is located during the previous ten (10) years. TLGC §395 requires the Land Use Plan and CIP
to be presented to the public. The CIP includes an analysis of the total water and wastewater system
capacity, projected service units attributable to new development within a 10-year period and should be
updated at least every five (5) years. The City’s last update was completed July 2020. This study evaluated
both new and redevelopment, predominately South of Highway 290, where existing water and sewer

facilities are not provided by the City.

Table 1-1 List of Abbreviati

Abbreviation Full Nomenclature
ADF Average Daily Flo
AWWA American Water Works As%ation
CIp Capital Improvement Plan
City City of Jersey Village
conn Connections
ESFC Equi\knt Single-Family Residential Water Connections

EST EIevate\nge Tank
ESU Equivalent ice Unit
ETJ \ Extr itoriawction
gal } Gallons
grn Gallons Per Day

gpm Gallons Per Minute
IFS Impact Fee Study
LS Lift Stations
R HF \,‘ Peak Hour Flow
MGD illion Gallons Per Day

Service Unit

SU
TCEQ Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
TLGC Texas Local Government Code
DB Texas Water Development Board
Water Plant
W Wastewater Treatment Plant

| QUIDDITY
15

Page 2

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



2.0 PLANNED GROWTH PROJECTIONS

The City anticipates growth in the form of new development and redevelopment in the area south of
Highway 290. This area is partially served by the City in the form of water, wastewater,and stormwater.
A critical part of the CIP and IFS is to predict future development within the City’s jurisdiction while
projecting anticipated water and wastewater demands. Projections aid in determining. the need and
timing of water and wastewater capital improvements necessary to sustain and serve future growth.

Growth and development projections are formulated based on land use type in areas undeveloped or

anticipated for redevelopment. The future land use assumptio come the foundation of the CIP for

water and wastewater facility needs.

<
2.1 POPULATION L
The 2021 Regional Water Plan issued by the TWDB outlines poptﬁtion projections for the years 2020
through 2070. The anticipated annual population growth rate for the City was projected at 1.85% each

year. See Table 2-1 for TWDB Population P tions.

Table 2-1 TWDB Population Proje

Source: Texas Water De

based on th ear projections related to new development

The estimatedﬂth rate for the ?y
,930 people are anticipated within the 10-year

exceeds the Tvmloulation F‘

tions. A

timeframe based on devel’nt type and per capita factors. This equates to 5% growth per year.

illing was provided by the City for Fiscal Year (FY) 21 — FY 23. The

most recent connection counts for August 2023 were utilized as the existing water system connections.
The existing water system is comprised of several types of uses including single-family residential, multi-
family residential, commercial, public and irrigation. Connections for this analysis are physical connections
to which drinking water is supplied as defined by 30 TAC §290.38(16). Wastewater system connections
were assumed for all water service connections with the exception of irrigation. See Table 2-2 for existing

water system connection count.

| QUIDDITY
16

Page 3

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



Table 2-2 Existing Water System Connections

Type Connections \
Single-Family Residential 2,243
Multi-Family Residential 1,544
Commercial 158
Irrigation 850
Public 66
Total 4,861
2.3 LAND USE PLAN
The future land use plan was created by referencing the existing land use plan, identifying

undeveloped tracts, and tracts forecasted for redeveloprrxe . The existing land use plan was updated to
reflect the current land use classifications based on desktop research p’rmed from multiple online
resources, as attached in Exhibit 1. Quiddity collaborated with the City to determine the anticipated type
of development for undeveloped or City owned tracts. Several ex&ng industrial tracts near the future

Village Center were predicted to be redeve&d into Commercial, Retail, and Mixed-Use. The future land
use plan also included adjusted City limits bz&n discussio\fity Staff, as attached in Exhibit 2.

Exhibit 1 — Curre\Lam’lassificatl

' 'u'IEINIT‘f MAP |

BRI 1IIEN ST U E T ke

CURREMT LAND USE ]
C_ASSIFICATION
LerouT

1]

CITY OF JERBEY WILLAGE |}
v vm iy, (g I

i

b

QUIDDITY

P

| QUIDDITY
17

Page 4

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



Exhibit 2 — Future Land Use Classification

T‘.
\AW

e
|7!_~=“-
- -1

VICINITY MAPR

RCOIE: 1 RS 00 TS

e e

FUTURE LAND USE [!
CLASS FICATION
LarauT |

CITY DF JERBEY VILLAGE |§

QUIDDITY

2.4 FUTURE GRO

The future growth projections are d on the f

timeframe. An@velopme ned

timeframe was excluded fr th|s analy5|s The ba

land use plan and the projected development
at is anticipated to occur outside of the 10-year

ne usage predicted in the IFS was 1,500 gpd per acre

or 250 gpd connections for water daily demand and 1,200 gpd per acre or 200 gpd per connections for

wastewater da mand. The number of connections per acre, or density, was assumed for each type of

usage and applied acreage e proposed development. The number of connections per acre was

established based on the projected density within the Houston Metro area and Quiddity’s experience with
other types of development. Table 2-3 lists the assumed connections per acre and capita factor by each

type of usage for the'projected new development.

| QUIDDITY
18

Page 5

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



Table 2-3: Density by Type of Development

Type Connections per Acre Capita Factor
Single-Family Residential 6 3.25

Multi-Family Residential 15 2
Commercial 0.5 4
Industrial 0.5 1
Mixed-Use 4 8
Irrigation 2 0

Public 0.25 0

2.4.1 5-YEAR PROJECTION CONNECTIONS

The growth projected within the next five (5) years is predi) ately anticipated to occur within the City’s
inner ETJ along Wright Road, surrounding the future Villagve Center, and C‘mits southwest of Highway
290 to FM 529. This includes approximately 52 acres of commercial, 38 acres of mixed-use, 82 acres of
industrial, and 10 acres of irrigation tracts. The City’s 5-year pophtion projection resulting from this

growth is 1,368 people. Table 2-4 lists the Mr projected physical connections and total connections for

each type of development. \ \

Table 2-4: 5-Year Connectio Djections 028)

New Development Total
Connections Connections

In&l
’ixed-Use

151 151

Irrigation 21 871
blic 0 66

T 254 5,115

2.4.2 10-YEAR PROJECTION CONNECTIONS

The growth projected within the 5-year to 10-year timeframe is predicted to occur in the remaining tracts
south of Highway 290 designated as “New Development” outside the projected City limits and within the
City’s ETJ. This includes approximately 5 acres of single-family residential, 33 acres of multi-family
residential, 67 acres of commercial, 25 acres of mixed-use, 2 acres of public, as well as 371 acres of
industrial designated tracts. The City’s 10-year population projection resulting from this growth is

approximately 2,271 people.

| QUIDDITY
19

Page 6

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



The growth projected to occur in the remaining undeveloped tracts within the City limits north of Highway
290 is designated as “Additional Development”. This includes approximately 8 acres of multi-family
residential and 23 acres of commercial designated tracts resulting in population growth of approximately
292 people. Projected physical connections were calculated based on the acrea5ge and density from the
new development and additional development areas. Table 2-5 lists the 10-year projected physical

connections and total connections for each type of development.

Table 2-5: 10-Year Connection Projections (FY 2033)

New Development Additional Development Total
Connections Connections Connections

Single-Family Residential 30 0 2,273

Multi-Family Residential 496 < 112 2,152
Commercial 38 18 242
Industrial 205 0 259
Mixed-Use 100 0 251
Irrigation 0 0 871
Public 1‘ 0 67

Total 870 ‘\30 6,115

MfPLAN‘

uture development were evaluated as part of the

from City Staff, including three (3) years of daily

well meter re&\d month(come?'%dat rom Year 2020-2023, including GIS shapefiles,
construction drawings, and previous studies.

TER SYSTEM EVALUATION

3.1 EXISTI

3.1.1 EXISTING ER INFR UCTURE

The City currently has three (3) water plants and an additional elevated storage tank serving its system.
Table 3-1 presents the facilities at each of the City’s water plants. The Seattle Water Plant (Water Plant
No. 1) is located at 15601 Seattle Street, the Village Water Plant (Water Plant No. 2) is located at 16600
Village Drive; the West Water Plant (Water Plant No. 3) is located at 12115 West Drive, and the Congo
Elevated Storage Tank is located at 15402 Congo Lane. The City also owns and maintains approximately
257,000 LF of waterline ranging in size between 2” diameter to 16” diameter and approximately 1,790 fire

hydrants based on previous records

| QUIDDITY
20

Page 7

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



Table 3-1 Existing Water Plant Facilities

Water Plant  Surface  Well Ground Elevated Booster Hydro-Tank
Water (gpm) Storage Storage Pumps (gal)

(gpm) (gal) (gal) (gpm)

Seattle (WP1) 1,042 1-300,000 - 3-1,100 -

1-500,000

Village (WP2) 900 1-420,000 250,000 1-750 -
1-500
1-250
1-100

West (WP3) 1,550 500,000 - 2-1,000 1-25,000

1-750
1-250

Congo - - ,000 - -

3.1.2 EXISTING WATER DEMANDS ’

Water demands were determined by analyzing the City’s three (3) Wrs of daily well meter readings and
monthly customer billing data from Year 2020-2023: The average daily demand was established using the

number of connections in the billing data p‘d, and the thly metering data for each connection

type to determine unit flow rates. Table 3-2 presents the existing nd.breakdown for the City.

Connection Type Connections Unit Demand Total Demand
(gpd/conn) (gpd)

250 560,800

1a 125 193,000

mmercia 1,500 237,000

|rrig’w 300 255,000

Public 1,000 66,000

ccountability/Losses 145,000
4,861 1,456,800

Based on the existin d projected unit flowrates from historical data, the effective unit
flowrate per connection is 300 gpd/conn. To evaluate the water system, the peak-hour condition, as set
forth by the TCEQ, was used as the worst-case scenario. Peak-hour conditions occur when a system
experiences the highest-use hour on a maximum day. The City only had monthly water consumption
reports available. Per 30 TAC §290.38(46), in the absence of 36 months of historical daily water usage, a
maximum day factor of 2.4 should be assumed. Table 3-3 presents the calculation for the maximum day

flow. Evaluating the previous three (3) years of well data, the City experienced moderate water losses or

accountability issues therefore 10% was utilized in the water capacity analysis.

| QUIDDITY
21

Page 8

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



Table 3-3 Max Day Flow

Average Day Flow 1,456,800
Max Day Factor 2.4

Max Day Flow 3,496,320

Peak-hour flows are determined by multiplying the maximum day flow by a factorof 1.25 for systems with
elevated storage in the absence of verified historical data. No hourly demand data was available at the

time of the report. A calculation of 2.4 multiplied by 1.25 yields a total maximum day PHF of 3.0 times the

ADF. Table 3-4 presents the existing water flow condition for the

Table 3-4 Existing Peak F

Existing Flow Condition Equation
Average Day 1,456,800 gpd / 1,440 min/da 1,012
Peak Hour (Max Day) 1,012 gpm x 2.4 x 1.25 3,035

3.1.3 EXISTING WATER SYSTEM CAPACITY ANALYSIS

The existing water facilities were analyzed eir capacity erve the existing system, in accordance

with 30 TAC §TAC290.45(b)(1)(D). To meet the minimum require

guaranteed supply of 0.6 gpm connection, a
a minimum elevated st&ity of 100

capacity (with the Iarge! pump out

s, the City must have a minimum

of 200 gallons per connection,

s per connection, and either a firm booster pump
ervice) of m per connection or enough firm booster pump
capacity to meet the maximum eak hour dem‘The City’s existing water plant facilities have

enough supply, eleva!éd storage, d storahooster pump capacity to serve the existing system.

The existing system water p capacity analysis is presented in Attachment B.

3.2 FUTURE R SYSTEM EVALUATION

3.2.1 METHODO Y OF PR TED WATER DEMANDS

To determine the projected water demands, the projected connections based on the future developments
and timelines were utilized. The water unit demands by type of connection were applied to the projected
connections, where applicable, and unit demands were established based upon Quiddity’s experience

with similar types of developments within the region.

| QUIDDITY
22

Page 9

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



3.2.2 5-YEAR WATER PROJECTIONS

Table 3-5 presents the projected water average daily flows for the 5-year anticipated buildout within the
area of new development. Based on the projected physical connections and unit flowrate the effective

unit flowrate per connection is 325 gpd/conn.

Table 3-5 5-Year Projected Average Day Flow

Connection Type Connections Unit Demand Total Demand
(gpd/conn) (gpd)

Single-Family Residential 2,243 5 560,800
Multi-Family Residential 1,544 25 193,000
Commercial 186 ,500 279,000
Industrial 54 1,500 81,000
Mixed-Use 154 PN 375 ‘ 56,600
Irrigation 871 300 261,300
Public 66 1,000 66,000
Accountability/Losses 166,500

Total 5,115 1,664,200

3.2.3 10-YEAR WATER PROJECTIONS ‘

the 10- anticipated buildout within the

Table 3-6 presents the projected water average daily flo
area of new developme d a al develo x ndeveloped tracts within the City’s jurisdiction.

Based on the projectec]'ysmal C

is 365 gpd/corh

owrate the effective unit flowrate per connection

ojlons and u‘
ab&lO-Year Pro

ed Average Day Flow
Connection Type Connections

Unit Demand Total Demand
(gpd/conn) (gpd)

gle-Family Residential 2,273 250 568,300

jal 2,152 125 269,000

242 1,500 363,000

259 1,500 388,500

Mixed-Use 251 375 94,100

Irrigation 871 300 261,300

Public 67 1,000 67,000

Accountability/Losses 223,500
Total 6,115 2,234,700

| QUIDDITY
23

Page 10

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



3.2.4 FUTURE WATER SYSTEM CAPACITY ANALYSIS

The City’s existing water plant facilities have enough elevated storage, ground storage, and booster pump
capacity to serve the projected 5-year and 10-year buildout. The City is limited with water supply based
on the 5-year and 10-year projections. The City intends to build a new water plant southwest of Highway
290 to better serve the new development projected. The 5-year and 10-year water plant capacity analyses

are presented in Attachments C and D respectively.

Based on the City’s intent to operate at nearly 60% surface water to comply with the Harris-Galveston
Subsidence District’s groundwater reduction plan, it is recommended the City renegotiate a new
contractual amount of water with the City of Houston. The maximum daily amount of water should be
increased to 5,363,280 gpd or 3,725 gpm, the projected 10-year maximum daily flow utilizing a max day
factor of 2.4. While surface water supply may be able to provide enough capacity to serve the new
development, since the contract is not guaranteed the City is required to have a total well capacity of 0.6

gpm/conn.

Quiddity included estimated cost associated with the City of Houston Interconnect No. 2 project,
previously referenced in the prior CIP report. A Water Master Plan is recommended to further evaluate
surface water and groundwater supply options, pressures southwest of Highway 290, and their associated

costs which could impact the IFS.

3.3 WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN

Quiddity was contracted by.the City in FY 2023 to perform an assessment on the existing water facilities
and develop-a CIP focused on operation, maintenance, rehabilitation, and improvements to the existing
water facility components. This allows the City to proactively budget for long-term viability of its system
and better understand the prioritization of projects at the appropriate timeline to help prevent premature
failures and ensure continued operation. The CIP for operation and maintenance is still in progress and

will be submitted separately.

Quiddity prepared CIP recommendations for new improvements to the existing water and wastewater
system based on the projected development timeframe and input received from the City. Based on these
projections, the City will need additional water improvements to serve the new development. Table 3-7

presents the Water CIP list to support the projected new development that can be funded through impact

| QUIDDITY
24

Page 11

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



fees. Cost estimates are included in Attachment E and include anticipated contingencies, inflation, land
acquisition, engineering and testing costs.

Table 3-7 Water Capital Improvements Plan

No. Description of Project \ Cost

Proposed Projects

W-12 | Water Master Plan $125,000
W-13 | Impact Fee Study & Rate Analysis $75,000
W-14 | Proposed Water Facility #4 $10,534,000
W-15 | City of Houston Interconnect No. 29 $2,135,000
W-16 | FM 529 8” & 12” Water Line from Harms Rd to Hwy 290 — ice to ETJ $2,971,000
W-17 | Charles Rd 8” & Wright Rd 12” Water Line Loop — Servi ET) $1,720,000
W-18 | Wright Rd 12” Water Line from Charles Rd to Hwy — Service to ETJ $1,724,000
W-19 | Fairview St 12” Water Line from FM 529 to Tayl — Service to ETJ $5,121,000

W-20 | Harms Rd 12” Water Line from FM 529 to Taylor Rd — Service to ? $3,119,000
Musgrove Ln 8” & 12” Water Line from Taylor Rd to Jones Rd Along Hwy $1,417,000

w-21 290 — Service to ETJ

W-22 Taylor Rd 8” & 12” Water Line Extension from Hwy 290 toNge of ET) - $761,000

Service to ETJ
\ \ Total $29,702,000

4.0 WASTEWATER SYSTEM CAPITAL

IMP?VIEN‘AN

The wastewater systemMerve thtyxs ing and future development were evaluated as part

of the impact fee anaws. Quiddjﬂlected av
f

wastewater trw:nt plant (WWT,

drawings. It wmmed the (develo

Castlebridge WWTP based ’oximity to the development and results from prior studies. The White Oak

le records from City Staff, such as recent daily

r‘Yeptember 2023, operation reports, and record

luent flows f

ould send all projected wastewater flow to the

Bayou W as not evaluated in the IFS as no wastewater demand was projected from the new

development to astewater service area.

4.1 EXISTING WAST TER SYSTEM EVALUATION

4.1.1 EXISTING WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE

The City. owns and maintains the Castlebridge WWTP, located at 12103 Castlebridge Drive, which has a
permitted daily average flow of 800,000 gpd or 0.8 MGD and a 2-hour peak of 1,885 gpm (with a peaking
factor of 3.4). The City is also a partner in the White Oak Bayou WWTP Joint Powers, along with West
Harris County Municipal Utility District (MUD) No. 1, Harris County MUD No. 25, Windfern Forest Utility
District and Baker Oil Tools. Collectively the partners own the White Oak Bayou WWTP, located at 15201
Philippine Street, which has a permitted effluent flow of 2,000,000 gpd or 2.0 MGD and a peak flow of

| QUIDDITY
25

Page 12

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



5,556 gpm (peak factor of 4.0). The City has 40.63% ownership of the White Oak Bayou WWTP and is
billed accordingly for any improvement projects at the plant. The City is also billed monthly based on the

percentage contributed of the total flow per month to the White Oak Bayou WWTP Joint Powers.

The City also owns and maintains eight (8) lift station (LS) within the system including the Philippine LS,
Hillcrest LS, Tahoe LS, Rio Grande LS, 290 NW LS, and the Jones Rd LS. The wastewater system also contains
approximately 205,000 LF of gravity sewers ranging in size between 4” diameter to 33” diameter and

approximately 795 manholes based on previous records.

4.1.2 EXISTING WASTEWATER FLOWS

Wastewater flows were determined by analyzing the Castlebridge WWTP average daily flows provided by
EPA — Enforcement and Compliance History Online (ECHO) database fobhe prior three (3) years of
monthly data, most recently through the month of August 2023. T% Average Day Flow was established

for the Castlebridge WWTP shown in Table 4-1.

Table 4-1

Castlebridge WWTP

N
Based on the three ( 3)‘rs of WW ffluent dat

average daily flow of approximate Jl 526 gallons
daily flow of S&SIlons or D.Th guates to 15% of the Castlebridge WWTP permitting
hydraulic capacity. TCEQ §‘126 reqmre:m)ermit holder to initiate engineering and financial

planning fi

lyzed, the City’s Castlebridge WWTP receives an

0.12 MGD compared to the permitted average

ansion when the average daily sewer flows reach 75% of permitted daily flows for 3

consecutive m Additionally, the permit holder must obtain necessary authorization to commence
construction for a al faciliti hen the average daily flows reach 90% of permitted flows for 3
consecutive months. Figure 1 shows the Castlebridge WWTP reported effluent data for 3-year period
dating July 2020 through August 2023. The WWTP consecutive 90-day average day flows peaked from
June 2021 to August' 2021 with a maximum 90-day average quantified at 139,733 gpd, which equates to

approximately 17% of the plant’s permitted capacity.

| QUIDDITY
26

Page 13

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



Figure 1 — Castlebridge WWTP 3-Year Flow Reporting

90% Capacity = 75% Capacity & Average Daily Flow = 90 Day Average

©
o

©
N

©
o

FLOW (MGD)
© o o o
N w D (92}

o©
pl

L 4 <
0

7/31/2020 1/29/2021 7/30/2021 1/28/2022 7/29/2022 1/27/2023 7/28/2023

4.1.3 EXISTING WASTEWATER SYSTEM CAPACITY ANALYSIS

Based on the permitted flows of the Castlebridge WWTP, the City“has sufficient capacity to serve the
existing system for this service area. The Castlebridge WWTP has a permitted flow of 800,000 gpd and is
only receiving 121,526/ gpd on average daily basis from three (3) years of historical data. The hourly

wastewater flows were not available for this evaluation, only record drawings and monthly reporting data.

The Jones Road LS is the only@xisting lift station assumed to receive an increase in wastewater flow based
on its proximity to the new development. The City did not have historical flow data on the existing Jones

Road LS; but was able to review record drawings and estimate the capacity of the lift station.

The prior IFS dated July 2020 evaluated the capacity of the Jones Road LS based on daily lift station pump
run times provided from April 2019 — December 2019. The LS had minimal run times averaging 0.16 hours
per day with a maximum run time of 0.37 hours per day, which indicated the lift station has capacity of
additional wastewater flow. Since new information was not available at the time of this study, it is
recommended the City obtain pump data in order to more accurately evaluate the capacity of the lift
station to serve the new development. Based on preliminary assumptions, the existing Jones Road LS does

not need any improvements to meet existing wastewater demands.

|l QUIDDITY
27

Page 14

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



4.2 FUTURE WASTEWATER SYSTEM EVALUATION

The IFS evaluated tracts not served by the City, predominately south of Highway 290 between FM 529,
Harms Road, and Taylor Road. As mentioned in Section 2.3, the baseline wastewater daily.demand is 1,200
gpd per acre or 200 gpd per connection was utilized regardless of the development classification due to
uncertainty of the development timeframe. A prior study titled “Preliminary Evaluation Study (Revised)
for Water and Wastewater Sanitary Sewer Improvements” dated March 9,.2023 prepared by others, was
evaluated as part of the IFS. Quiddity recommends different water and wastewater system alighments
due to conflicts with existing utilities and more practical LS location to serve the new development tracts.
The suggested lift station location in the prior study is not feasible as the identified tract is designated by
TXDOT for drainage purposes. Quiddity analyzed the proposed utility line sizes based on allowable slopes,

capacity, and line sizes allowed by the City of Houston — 2023 Infrastructure Design Manual.

A portion of the new service area projectedalong Charle— Road are anticipated to be collected via gravity
collection system and pumped via the proposed FM 529 LS into the existing gravity collection system at
the intersection of Jones Road and FM 529. This wastewater.eventually flows into the existing Jones Road
LS which is pumped via force main to Castlebridge WWTP. Based on the Jones Road LS record drawings,
the pumps are recommended to be upsized to accommodate the new projected wastewater flow while

the existing wet well-and force main piping are anticipated to remain based on preliminary assumptions.

4.2.1 METHODOLOGY OF WASTEWATER FLOW PROJECTIONS

To determine the projected wastewater flows, projected connections were analyzed based on projected
future development timeframes. Water unit demands by type of connection were utilized, and a return
factor was applied to establish the wastewater flows. Due to the significant amount of water loss and
reported issues with the sewer system leading to inflow and infiltration, a historical system-wide return
factor could not be established. A return factor of 0.8 was used for new development since no historical

flow information was available.

Since no flow data‘'was available for the Jones Road LS, the existing wastewater flows for the delineated
service area was projected at 179,483 gpd ADF. When combining the projected 38,619 gpd ADF at the FM
529 LS the total projected wastewater demand for Jones Road LS is projected at 218,102 gpd ADF from

the new development.

| QUIDDITY
28

Page 15

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



4.2.2 5-YEAR WASTEWATER PROJECTIONS

Table 4-2 presents the projected 5-year wastewater ADF at the Castlebridge WWTP based on anticipated
wastewater connections and timeframe for the new development. This projected flow will be supplied by

the new FM 529 LS and Existing Jones Road LS via pressurized force mains to the Castlebridge WWTP.

Table 4-2 Projected WWTP Flows at 5-Year Projections

Classification Average Daily Flows (gpd)
New Development 5-Year
Existing Castlebridge WWTP
Total

€
4.2.3 10-YEAR WASTEWATER PROJECTIONS ’

Table 4-3 presents the projected 10-year wastewater ADF at the Castlebridge WWTP based on anticipated

wastewater connections and timeframe for the new development akadditional development areas. This

projected flow will be supplied by the New or Road LS; New FM 529 LS, and Existing Jones Road LS via

pressurized force mains and gravity flow via existing collection north of Highway 290.

ws at 10-Year Projections
Average Daily Flows (gpd)

218,102

New Develop 10-Year 601,897
ﬂ:&ional Dev ent 10-Year 36,168
isting Casti‘ge Wuvk 121,526

Total 977,693

424 FUTU STEWATER SYSTEM CAPACITY ANALYSIS

TCEQ §305.126 req a WW ermit holder to initiate engineering and financial planning for
expansion when the sewage flows reach 75% or 0.6 MGD of permitted average daily flows for 3
consecutive months. The permit holder must also obtain the necessary authorization to commence
construction for additional facilities when the flows reach 90% or 0.72 MGD of the permitted average

daily flows for the Castlebridge WWTP.

Based on the 5-year projected wastewater demands, it appears the Castlebridge WWTP will have enough
capacity to serve the future projected development based on permitted hydraulic capacity. Assuming all

tracts along Jones Road and Charles Road are developed within five (5) years, the projected wastewater

| QUIDDITY
29

Page 16

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



average daily flow of 339,628 gpd or 0.34 MGD equates to 42% of the permitting hydraulic capacity at

Castlebridge WWTP, therefore no improvements are recommended.

Based on the 10-year projected wastewater demands, it appears the Castlebridge WWTP will not have
enough capacity to serve the future projected development based on permitted hydraulic capacity.
Assuming all tracts within the 5-year projected area which include Jones Road and Charles Road; in

addition to the projected 10-year area which includes Wright Road, Fairview Street, Harms Road and

Taylor Road are developed, including the projected development
wastewater average daily flow of 977,693 gpd or 0.98 MGD eq

capacity at Castlebridge WWTP. Based on these projectio

&
Castlebridge WWTP with triggers at the 75% and 90% thresholds. ’

h of Highway 290, the projected
s to 122% of the permitted hydraulic

provements would be necessary to the

While the 10-year projections assume full build out, the likelihood of all tracts developing and connecting

to the new wastewater collection system is.unknown. Quiddity incl\uded estimated cost associated with

the expansion of Castlebridge WWTP, ho\aer more anal

sis is recommended due to potential site

limitations for expansion and other factors. astewateN Plan is recommended to further

evaluate expansion options and estimated costs at Castl

4.3 WASTEWATER C ALIM VEMENTS

Water and wastewater system impr

improvement

idge Wm

ents are n

ed to accommodate the new development. Only

‘velopment were evaluated for this CIP. Table

grades nece o serve the ne
4-3 presents the anticipated overa t fomr system improvements. The cost shown includes

engineering and contingenui, where applicable. Details cost estimates are included in Attachment F.

Table 4-3 Wastewater Capital Improvements Plan

S-6 | Wastewater er Plan $175,000
S-7 | Impact Fee Study & Rate Analysis $75,000
S-10 | Jones Rd LS & FM 529 Service Area 8" Wastewater Line - Service to ETJ $1,555,000
S-11 | FM 529 LS Service Area 8" Wastewater Lines - Service to ETJ $3,045,000
S-12 | Proposed Taylor Road Lift Station & 12" Force Main to Castlebridge WWTP - Service to ET) | $4,932,000
S-13 | Wright Rd 8" & 12” Wastewater Line from FM 529 to Hwy 290 - Service to ETJ $1,998,000
S-14 | TaylorRoad 8", 15", & 18" Wastewater Line - Service to ETJ $2,017,000
S-15 | Fairview St 8" & 12” Wastewater Line from FM 529 to Taylor Rd - Service to ETJ®? $3,921,000
S-16 | Harms Rd 8" & 12” Wastewater Line from FM 529 to Taylor Rd - Service to ETJ $1,867,000
S-17 | Castlebridge WWTP Expansion $ 19,600,000
Total | $39,185,000

Page 17

| QUIDDITY

30

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



5.0 IMPACT FEE ANALYSIS

The IFS evaluates the City’s available water and wastewater capacity to serve existing.and future
development over the next ten (10) years. The fees are calculated as a percentage of the assumed project
costs based upon the percentage of the project’s capacity to serve the projected development in the next
ten (10) years. None of the CIP projects are intended to improve water and wastewater service to existing

customers or increase capacity serving existing development as part of this analysis.

5.1 SERVICE UNITS

For impact fees, "new development" is defined as subdivision of<land; the construction,
reconstruction, redevelopment, conversion, structural ?Iteration, relo n, or enlargement of any
structure; or any use or extension of the use of land; any of which increases the number of service units.
"Service Unit" is defined as a standardized measure of consumNon, use, generation, or discharge
attributable to an individual unit of devﬂment calculated in accordance with generally accepted

engineering or planning standards and basN historical nd trends applicable to the political

subdivision in which the individual unit of development is located the previous ten (10) years. The
projected water and waste i i rojected at 250 gpd and 200 gpd respectively.
te to the City of Houston Impact Fee Service Unit
Equivalent Table dated August 26, 2 i nit Equivalents provided in Attachment G and is
calculated based on the type of opment and ap

for the new development.

imate total number of service units necessary

Tible resents th er and wastewater SUs for the City’s future water

and wastewater systems.

Table 5-1 Projected Service Units

Systems 2028 pLopl:] 2033 2033 Total Total
Projected Projected Projected Projected 10-Year 10-Year
Demands SUs Demands SUs Demands SUs
(gpd) (gpd) (gpd)
Water 272,628 1,091 797,582 3,190 1,070,210 4,281
Wastewater 218,102 1,091 638,065 3,190 856,167 4,281

5.2 WATER AND WASTEWATER ATTRIBUTABLE IMPROVEMENTS

Existing and proposed improvement projects were evaluated to determine the percent utilization for new
development within the next five (5) and ten (10) years. The percentage of utilization within the 10-year

timeframe for new development and additional development was used to calculate the eligible project

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

| QUIDDITY
31

Page 18



costs for impact fees. Any of the projects’ capacity used on existing development cannot be included in

the eligible project costs for impact fees. Tables 5-2 and 5-3 shows the calculated eligible project cost for

the water and wastewater systems.

Table 5-2 Water Projects Eligible Impact Fee Cost

Projects

%

Utilization

FY 2023-
2028

FY 2028-
2033

Impact Fee

Eligible Cost

Water Master Plan 100% $125,000 $0 $125,000 $125,000
Impact Fee Study & Rate 100% $75,000 $0 $75,000 $75,000
Analysis
Proposed Water Facility #4 |  100% $0 $10,534,000 | $10,534,000 | $10,534,000
CoH IC No. 2 50% $0 $2,135,000 | $2,135,000 | $1,067,500
Fm r5n212 i . f‘oljwyz"";gr 90% $2,971,000 ) $2,971,000 | $2,673,900
Charles Rd 8" & Wright Rd 90% $1,720,000 ) $1,720,000 | $1,548,000
12" Water
Wright Rd 12" Water 90% 0 $1,724,000 | $1,724,000 | $1,551,600
Fairview St 12" Water 10% $0 $5,121,000 | $5,121,000 $512,100
Harms Rd 12" Water 10% $0 $3,119,000 | $3,119,000 $311,900
Musgrove Ln 8" & 12" Water 90% S0 $1,417,000 $1,417,000 $1,275,300
Taylor Rd 8" Water 90% $0 $761,000 $761,000 $684,900
Summation $4,891,000 | $24,811,000 | $29,702,000 | $20,359,200

Table 5-3 Wastewater Projects Eligible Impact Fee Cost

Proiects % FY 2023- FY 2028- Impact Fee
) Utilization 2028 2033 Eligible Cost
Wastewater Master Plan 100% S 175,000 SO $175,000 $175,000
Impact Fee Study 100% 0 $75,000 $75,000 $75,000
idge WWT
astiaRgldee P 40% $0 $19,600,000 | $19,600,000 | $7,840,000
Improvements
Rd L A
pones Rd sz,f‘i:e'\g e Area 90% $1,555,000 $0 $1,555,000 | $1,399,500
FM 529 LS Area 8" Lines 90% $3,045,000 0 $3045000 | $2,740,500
p Taylor Rd LS & 12"
roposed a‘é&r d 3 90% $0 $4932,000 | $4,932,000 | $4438800
Wright Rd 8" & 12" Lines 90% 0 $1998000 | $1,998,000 | $1,798,200
n mn 1 n
& Rdﬁn'e 25 g 2 80% $0 $2017,000 | $2,017,000 | $1,613,600
Fairview St 8" & 12" Lines 10% 0 $3921,000 | $3,921,000 $392,100
Harms Rd 8" & 12" Lines 10% 0 $1867,000 | $1,867,000 $186,700
Summation $4,775,000 | $34,410,000 | $39,185,000 | $20,659,400
| ! QUIDDITY

32

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



5.3 MAXIMUM IMPACT FEE CALCULATION

According to the §395, impact fees can be assessed based on one of two options. The fees can either a)
allow for a credit calculation to credit back the development community based on the utility revenues and
ad valorem taxes that are allocated for paying a portion of future capital improvements or b) reduce
recoverable cost for implementing the capital improvements plan by 50%. The‘intent of the credit is to
prevent the City from double charging development for future capital improvements via impact fees and

utility rates. The City has historically assessed impact fees using the second option, to reduce the

recoverable cost by 50%. For this analysis, the 50% credit option utilized. Tables 5-4 and 5-5 present

the calculation for the maximum assessable impact fee pers e unit, not physical connections, for both

\ 4

Table 5-4 Maximum Water Impact Fee per Service Unit
Eligible Impact Fee Costs $20,359,200
Finance Costs (4.5%) $7,570,000
10-Year Additional SUs 4,281 SUs
Eligible Cost per SU i $6,524
Impact Fee per SU (50% Reduction) 3,262

the City’s water and wastewater system. @

- rater Impact Fee per Service Unit
Eligible Impact Fee Costs $20,659,400
Finance Costs (4.5%) $7,682,000
10-Year Additional SUs 4,281 SUs
Eligible Cost per SU $6,620
Impact Fee per SU (50% Reduction) $3,310

Regardless of velopment type, SU can be applied evenly based on the project water and wastewater

demands. Water sizes are i endent from the SU’s and should be sized appropriately based on

AWWA recommendati for each new service request. The City should utilize the latest manual

published by AWWA titled M22 Sizing Water Service Lines and Meters for future water meter sizing.

| QUIDDITY
33

Page 20

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



6.0 IMPACT FEE ADOPTION

In order to approve the impact fees outlined in the report, an advisory council must review the proposed
CIP, Land Use Plan, and Impact Fees and provide comments to the City Council. A public hearing must
subsequently be held to review and allow public comment on the CIP, Land Use Plan, and Impact Fees.
Quiddity will present the CIP, Land Use Plan and Impact Fee updates to the Capital Improvements Advisory
Committee on November 29, 2023 which in return will submit written comments and recommendations

to the City Council. A public hearing is anticipated to be held on December 9, 2023 to address comments

from the updated to the CIP, Land Use Plan and Impact Fees. T ity Council will review and consider

approving the updated CIP, Land Use Plan and Impact Fees ecember 9, 2023.

’ ®

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Reports\COJV CIP and Impact Fee Study Final Draft_20231101.docx

| QUIDDITY
34

Page 21

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



EXHIBIT 1
CURRENT LAND USE PLA

I:l QUIDDITY

ENGINEERING

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

35

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



EXHIBIT 1

JKIUKENNYS 8

>

SRz o B oroUCHEREDICE]

"\i'

GASTLEBK'TDG
ay

TR

xR

X/

%
&
A7 3731

4
9,
2

<

y

(o)
S 7EBRIDGEDR

4

4

[WESTZRD)

Bl
o &
S

[CURT{LN)

= &

&3

S

)

S

)]

RE <
JRDJ X E\
JEVMETTIRD)
IGROVE[LN] INORTHWESiig
bR

5 1L

EENSITTY

TENSATY

1AM

)
=

LZEREE T 3
s

@w
[DUDE)
i
[ow FR D)
WYNDHAM,

ul

o
S =
) T =
MINTURNION] > V=
% ‘4’@
=\ ER;

é«‘;’
%

INORTHWE S Tg

2alSaNIMHILEON,

IMARTINDALEJRDJ

T
(C7d

JUN]

STONEQ
85
R,

Q
g
&

4
=

JKEVINDALE]

HONOLULU.
(S8

S0

)
l Q?

\«Wo ODJDR{
35 @%@}

POl

SECUFI?%\
=

N

i
N

g
= fohvriNE=IDE] %
@gbmﬂ e WINDEERAS
c"é*vsma [N o
R/ CHESTERIN] 3 E%@fm gff
aw% é : ME%EM %’
PASHEURTONIDERC %
NEEDSIN] %
2
R

SWATETEGS
&

o 'UMJRIDGE(DR]

O

sprngvaey _ f 1 | |
EEEE Bunker D g §1

Wl Virl.:glge J} West @’

4 {University-f \\
/ _'__ Place gl )
/W 1 A

VICINITY MAP 2

Scale: 1inch equals 10 miles

DVI

e Projected City Limits
City of Jersey Village

L_.I City of Jersey Village
— City ETJ

—+— Railroad
Future Land Use Classification

D Undeveloped
- Agriculture

Single-Family
Residential

Multi-Family
Residential

Mixed-Use
Retail/Commercial
Industrial

Transportation/Utilities

Public/Institutional
Parks/0Open Space

Water/Detention

TaH 39 OL ONILLAA FH.L 404 LIOVd ONLLIAN |

CURRENT LAND US
CLASSIFICATION
LAYOUT

CITY OF JERSEY VILLAG

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

0 750 1,500 N

| ] |
Feet w

1inch equals 1,500 feet S

O "RIMY NO d

4

1£4ix4

Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal,
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate
relative location of property, governmental and/or political
boundaries or related facilities to said boundary. No express
warranties are made by Quiddity Engineering concerning the
accuracy, completeness, reliability, or usability of the
information included within this exhibit.

QUIDDITY

User Name: adal

Date: 10/20/2023

Project Number: 05440-0013-01

Path: V:\Practice Workspace\Corporate Services\GIS\Projects\0_Individuals\C_Jinks\JerseyVillage\05440-0004-00\CurrentLandUse_11x17.mxd



EXHIBIT 2
FUTURE LAND USE PLA

I:l QUIDDITY

ENGINEERING

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

37

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



EXHIBIT 2

KIUKENNYS
[GUENN]DR]

&E’

a

[WESRD]

JLASEER

[SWEEEJDR}

[CURTZUN]

y
@B GERZXAT
PualvnnsLysy

Even ol —

‘
\

faafLyNaISE

Rz aﬂﬁ@@
&=
S
B OROUGHEREDIDS

3

Nt NS

@’@»

\\ g,'

8 2 Vé’
» 5 W 7 ;

g
s o

'EPARK{
"' P EEPLELARAS
[oR]

ALY 0 [CTd

Y
S7uEBRIDGEDR

INYa

JRUUNJRI DGEIDR]

{RDJ

w fohveinE=g]
REVINDALE, & WINDRERN
R L JEORE ST/DR
JKOESTERSN %&%é b % %}m}hﬂ] -
aB e rsrzorERID ] g%ﬁﬁm éf‘?
@ CIAWORCRNIDR: % ok %
B 3
< o 2, BRI i %ﬁﬁ
Aok V>
l PASHEURTONIDERC %
5 CaBRI[OR - )
-— e G g i |
n & )
& | %WM%%?
Lo Ol

')

iE

Liapayvd)
'Sq0OMHLHO

ORTHWES Tz
DR,
—

B ROOKRIVG’?

Spri_r_l_gyall ey

Bunker
Hill

VICINITY MAP

Scale: 1inch equals 10 miles

LEGEND

City of Jersey Village
City Limits
A City of Jersey Village
— City ETJ
_'_

HCAD

Future Land Use Classification

Undeveloped

- Agriculture

Single-Family
Residential

Multi-Family
Residential

Mixed-Use
- Retail/Commercial
- Industrial
- Transportation/Utilities
- Public/Institutional
Parks/0Open Space

Water/Detention

FUTURE LAND USE
CLASSIFICATION
LAYOUT

CITY OF JERSEY VILLAG

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

0 750
| ]

Feet

1,500 N

g

1inch equals 1,500 feet S

O TRIAY NO A'TAH 49 OL ONLLAHIN HHL JOA LAMIVd ONLLAHIN DVID

4

1£4i14

Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal,
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate
relative location of property, governmental and/or political
boundaries or related facilities to said boundary. No express
warranties are made by Quiddity Engineering concerning the
accuracy, completeness, reliability, or usability of the
information included within this exhibit.

B

QUIDRITY

User Name: adal

Date: 10/24/2023

Project Number: 05440-0013-01

Path: V:\Practice Workspace\Corporate Services\GIS\Projects\0_Individuals\C_links\JerseyVillage\05440-0004-00\FutureLandUse_11x17.mxd



EXHIBIT 3
WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEM

I:l QUIDDITY

ENGINEERING

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

39

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



EXHIBIT 3

\ |
‘ |
W |
5 10— T
B s, s % e i n _ R
@33 0 ! 1, € | | I‘I“.
ety 3 z [CRESN \——\
P mag, @3 93 ) = ﬁg > B
o\ N West Road g 2 j 2 .
S <W:R0 CASTD
%%%9 oe"* \* B 1. g Water Plant g
& S, Q, L -
L © 12 o O R CUZTNG] g 2’0 M/RIDGE[DR] |
2 © R [LORSENNg = .
X - & ¢ n: ,yunFis\l'gt;dem
: NEX \‘ 4 1] s
2, - e I —— )
2 [OUDE /R D) . | 510, ¥// 2
D S
%, v SOl §
) ?%% 55 VICINITY MAP ©
W% : C.é: Scale: 1inch equals 10 miles?
e LR 5 B X =
o 2 =
% % LEGEND 5
(O] ROSA S ®
& B 2 : @ Existing Fire Hydrant =
2 Gy 220 - o : =
Musgrove Ln 8" : ™ & = Existing Waterline =
& 12" Water Line 8 ! e @ 5 e Proposed Waterline (o)
2, ] aﬁ VETTE] . .
S |- ] DRI D City of Jersey Village ;
[WEST4RD} % PINESIDR] City Limits
Tavlor Rd 8" r 7 6 S . - \2 = N & R" a" —N‘ = — — City of Jersey Village %
X ) | 8 | Proposed Water 6" o 3 2 . - man® [ORESRL ) L—— CityETJ “lp
2 3, “ R - = -1
&12" Water Line r— % Facility No.4 |& 8 \q- = WSS h o o@m®™ \® iol) & HCAD Parcels = g
CJ ’ < = - 2. Y |[EREE[DR S
= : " . = o & e - = e 5 g 5-Year Projection 8 2
] . B 12 , > Village Drive : v T % - :
City of Houston 2 ——— TAYLORRD., S 12y . g " 6 gt B¢ S Ry &R AMORGRN DR mwzy Service Area ~|°
) & |- = N Water Plant g = E > ICAEL L =]
Interconnect No. 2 | W | P s o o, a1z N i “"?@ 557 10-Year Projection =3
1 . RA S X : PRI VAUNALOADR S R 3
I 3 2, N 5, 7 of ¢ 30k | S %o o i @ Service Area ; s
> N g ’ X v 1 ; o -3 P % T Q P
. (Y O] < S, % - ON.D S % s
Fairview St 8" I & Y 2 R e ' A .
n . x 2 < - . & s 8 8, 8 | oD l{/ 8'd- % S E °
& 12" Water Line | : e B & 8. . 4 y 0 (¢ : g - |3
Y « N . o ? & B 8
P P ; [ A Pzt "IN, 2 =1z
= R . - 0 6. =G o 2 A 7o, NGO y i ) W@ﬁ % §
n 8 & ) DE/L'C Q' \ A 1o, LAWN! °
Harms Rd_12 % o Y 2 ] S ILPAREST Sl
Water Line NG () 0 . 2" PN @ olz
N - ‘{) U N7 g
AN ‘ < L o ' ; /A ¥ 5. 2 1 45 =IH
$ - %, L 2 2 , ‘ =
) S 90 e N, Y. oney oy 1202 Ay SRS E 2
] | v $ 12" 6" - h} : E
o 8 . o R 4 - L o 3 oy 2 Congo Lane WATER =z
I - Y : .8l 5 1y EST Site o
A e RERINCT. - - DISTRIBUTION o
A Y 0 . 8" APOR S BROOKR
CoRTIN Py 4% 8" 2 i 2N SYSTEM LAYOUT =z
- (s2] N
= Y @ RER ERERRNR " 1628 5. 8" 12" -k
- C : L . : AT & | | CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE|;
City of Houston - oo B 12 - : o R\ § HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS =z
Water Plant 12 : / 20 2" amaamadi2 5 Y SNEL WM o
el 3
8 z Charles Rd 8" & 12" A ? 7?0 1,5|00 N2
% Water Line Loop o, % Feet w B2
S S LY = ee ™ |
88 3 § D & 2 , -
e o, s, d Tinch equals 1,500 feet S
n o
Wright Rd 12" FM 529 8 CENE A EET. o
g . n H =ORDJHILLS Qm 8 "\B . < “ @R Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes | £
wEA X Water Llne & 12 water Llne %@w o 16 and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, '“3'-
IRDJ ; S [ED engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an E
S, S 8 e N 6«‘ nn-the-grnunt_:l survey and represents only the auprnxil_n_ate g
E 5 ; ) Seattle e e e o [ €
S Water Plant socuracy,  completenees, reliailty. or usabiity of - the | &
% 4 ~ information included within this exhibit. §
% E ,\,@;ﬁ@ g
EmEE®D ] 8 % City of Houston @é@@ §
@REL vmaves % Interconnect No. 1 i
QUIDDITY [
Texas Board of Professional Engin ion No. F-23290 E



EXHIBIT 4
WASTEWATER SYSTEM IMPROV TS

I:l QUIDDITY

ENGINEERING

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

41

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



EXHIBIT 4

Harms Rd 8" and 12"
Wastewater Line

—

[CURTJLN)

—
2L

Fairview St 8" and 12"
Wastewater Line

Castlebridge i
WWTP
WeSTRD)
Future TaylorRd [ —
LS
l_ (2]
II 8 15 W 15:" 18
e s \Y/LORR D
1
| B
VIULAGE[DR] s
EWEERIDR] | o
| -
VisTA :
o | I
3ROOKIDR) ég | 1

Wright Rd 8" and 12"
Wastewater Line

v crz o

EROVELN]

INORTHWEST
[DR]

P

EFastlebhidge

WAWUL?

@
\White]

SenvicelAreal

Beyau W
SenvicefAreal

|
o
(CUTTING]
m@g@
[DR}

O
ZLEBRIDGE DR

2a

%,

HO 1AM,

=} S TREE(CTy

Jones Rd LS
Service Area 8"
Wastewater Lines

Tahoe LS

oNoLULU!

290 NW LS

e SEENCER:

5

Future FM 529 LS

[GIEEORDIHILLY

FM 529 LS
Service Area 8"
IPORT,
Wastewater Lines

R
MARTTRALIED =

D IYEE]

@IEE

= W
Rsramawny
R/ CHESTERIUN] .

[GLAMORGANJDR}

Gl

VAUNAIUOAIDRRS
]

2]
m
PAS Y BURTON[DE]
3

Hillcrest LS

WGULEIE AN K

7 GEGERG®
C’Lﬁ

JPU0 M [RIDGEIDR]

mﬁﬁﬁg

o
@usA R

WINDEERAS
[FORE SO/

[GESSNERIRD]

GO

jwinD}

2 IEREEJDR}
e
WiND]
[CAVELN]

&y

&
2
S

%
e

He

White Oak
Bayou WWTP

i 7~

VICINITY MAP

Scale: 1inch equals 10 miles

LEGEND

A Lift Station (LS)

Wastewater Treatment Pla
(WWTP)

@ WWTP Service Area
Existing Force Main

Proposed Force Main
Existing Gravity Main
Proposed Gravity Main
City of Jersey Village
City Limits

City of Jersey Village
City ETJ

HCAD Parcels

Tahoe LS Service Area

L 04 LIDVd ONLLAANEDVID

Date: 10/20/2023

H

Rio Grande LS Service Aream
I 2920 NW LS Service Area

N

- Hilcrest LS Service Area
5-Year Projection

ONILLAA

FM 529 LS Service Area

Jones Rd LS Service Area ™
10-Year Projection

40

Taylor Rd LS Service Area =

WASTEWATER
DISTRIBUTION
SYSTEM LAYOUT

' NO A'TAH

CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS :
L
0 750 1,500 N =
| ] ] ~
w B
Feet et
=

1inch equals 1,500 feet S

Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal,
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate
relative location of property, governmental and/or political
boundaries or related facilities to said boundary. No express
warranties are made by Quiddity Engineering concerning the
accuracy, completeness, reliability, or usability of the
information included within this exhibit.

Texas Board of Professional Er_\ginggmbn No. F-23290

User Name: adal

Project Number: 05440-0004-00

11x17.mxd

\lerseyVillage\05440-0004

C_Jinks'

\

Path: V:\Practice Workspace\Corporate Services\GIS\Projects\0



ATTACHMENT A

TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE C ER 395

I:l QUIDDITY

ENGINEERING

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

43

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...

LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE

TITLE 12. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

SUBTITLE C. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT PROVISIONS APPLYING TO MORE THAN ONE
TYPE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT

CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN
MUNICIPALITIES, COUNTIES, AND CERTAIN OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

SUBCHAPTER A. GENERAL PROVISIONS

Sec. 395.001. DEFINITIONS. In this chapter:

(1) "Capital improvement" means any of the following facilities
that have a life expectancy of three or more years and are owned and
operated by or on behalf of a political subdivision:

(A) water supply, treatment, and distribution facilities;
wastewater collection and treatment facilities; and storm water, drainage,
and flood control facilities; whether or not they are located within the
service area; and

(B) roadway facilities.

(2) "Capital improvements plan" means a plan required by this
chapter that identifies capital improvements or facility expansions for
which impact fees may be assessed.

(3) "Facility expansion" means the expansion of the capacity of
an existing facility that serves the same function as an otherwise
necessary new capital iImprovement, in order that the existing facility may
serve new development. The term does not include the repair, maintenance,
modernization, or expansion of an existing facility to better serve
existing development.

(4) "Impact fee" means a charge or assessment imposed by a

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

political subdivision against new development in order to generate revenue
for funding or< recouping the costs of capital improvements or facility
expansions necessitated by and attributable to the new development. The
term includes amortized charges, lump-sum charges, capital recovery fees,
contributions in aid of construction, and any other fee that functions as
described by this definition. The term does not include:

(A) dedication of land for public parks or payment in lieu of

the dedication to serve park needs;

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 44 1/25



1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...

(B) dedication of rights-of-way or easements or construction
or dedication of on-site or off-site water distribution, wastewater
collection or drainage facilities, or streets, sidewalks, or curbs if the
dedication or construction is required by a valid ordinance and is
necessitated by and attributable to the new development;

(C) 1lot or acreage fees to be placed in trust funds for the
purpose of reimbursing developers for oversizing or constructing water or
sewer mains or lines; or

(D) other pro rata fees for reimbursement of water or sewer
mains or lines extended by the political subdivision.

However, an item included in the capital improvements plan may not be
required to be constructed except in accordance with Section 395.019 (2),
and an owner may not be required to construct or dedicate facilities and to
pay impact fees for those facilities.

(5) "Land use assumptions" includes a description of the service
area and projections of changes in land uses, densities, intensities, and
population in the service area over at least a 10-year period.

(6) "New development" means the subdivision of land; the
construction, reconstruction, redevelopment, conversion, structural
alteration, relocation, or enlargement of -any structure; or any use or
extension of the use of land; any of which increases the number of service
units.

(7) "Polditical subdivision" means a municipality, a district or
authority created under Article III, Section 52, or Article XVI, Section
59, of the Texas Constitution, or, for the purposes set forth by Section
395.079, certain counties described by that section.

(8)... "Roadway facilities"™ means arterial or collector streets or
roads that have been designated on an officially adopted roadway plan of
thepolitical subdivision, together with all necessary appurtenances. The
term includes the political subdivision's share of costs for roadways and
associated improvements designated on the federal or Texas highway system,

including local matching funds and costs related to utility line relocation

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

and the establishment of curbs, gutters, sidewalks, drainage appurtenances,
and rights-of-way.

(9) "Service area" means the area within the corporate boundaries
or extraterritorial jurisdiction, as determined under Chapter 42, of the
political subdivision to be served by the capital improvements or
facilities expansions specified in the capital improvements plan, except
roadway facilities and storm water, drainage, and flood control facilities.

The service area, for the purposes of this chapter, may include all or part

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 45 2/25


http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.019
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CN&Value=3.52
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CN&Value=16.59
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.079
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=42

1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...

of the land within the political subdivision or its extraterritorial

jurisdiction, except for roadway facilities and storm water, drainage, and

flood control facilities.
limited to an area within
subdivision and shall not
flood control facilities,

land within the political

For roadway facilities, the service area is

the corporate boundaries of the political
exceed six miles. For storm water, drainage, and
the service area may include all or part of the

subdivision or its extraterritordal Jjurisdiction,

but shall not exceed the area actually served by the storm water, drainage,

and flood control facilities designated in the capitald improvements plan
and shall not extend across watershed boundaries.
(10) "Service unit" means a standardized measure of consumption,

use, generation, or discharge attributable to an individual unit of

development calculated in

planning standards and based on historical data and trends applicable to

the political subdivision

located during the previous 10 years.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., c¢ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., c¢ch. 566, Sec. 1l(e), eff. Aug. 28, 1989;

Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch.

SUBCHAPTER B. AUTHORIZATION OF IMPACT FEE

Sec. 395.011. AUTHORIZATION OF FEE. (a) Unless otherwise
specifically authorized by state law or this chapter, a governmental entity
or political subdivision may not enact or impose an impact fee.

(b)« Political subdivisions may enact or impose impact fees on land
within their corporate boundaries or extraterritorial jurisdictions only by
complying with this chapter, except that impact fees may not be enacted or
imposed in the extraterritorial jurisdiction for roadway facilities.

(¢) A municipality may contract to provide capital improvements,
except roadway facilities,

extraterritorial jurisdiction and may charge an impact fee under the

accordance with generally accepted engineering or

in which the individual unit of development is

345, Sec. 1, effi Sept. 1, 2001.

to an area outside its corporate boundaries and

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

contract, but 4f an impact fee is charged in that area, the municipality

must comply with this chapter.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.012. ITEMS PAYABLE BY FEE. (a) An impact fee may be

imposed only to pay the costs of constructing capital improvements or

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 6 3/25



1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...

facility expansions, including and limited to the:

(1) construction contract price;
(2) surveying and engineering fees;
(3) land acquisition costs, including land purchases, court

awards and costs, attorney's fees, and expert witness fees; and

(4) fees actually paid or contracted to be paid to<an independent
qualified engineer or financial consultant preparing or updating the
capital improvements plan who is not an employee of the political
subdivision.

(b) Projected interest charges and other finance costs may be
included in determining the amount of impact fees only if the impact fees
are used for the payment of principal and interest on bonds, notes, or
other obligations issued by or on behalf offthe political subdivision to
finance the capital improvements or facility expansions identified in the
capital improvements plan and are not used to reimburse bond funds expended
for facilities that are not identified in the capital improvements plan.

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, the Edwards
Underground Water District or a river authority that is authorized
elsewhere by state law to charge fees that function as impact fees may use
impact fees to pay a staff engineer who prepares or updates a capital
improvements plan under this chapter.

(d) A municipality may pledge an impact fee as security for the
payment of debt service on a bond, note, or other obligation issued to
finance a capital improvement or public facility expansion if:

(1) the improvement or expansion is identified in a capital
improvements plan; and

(2)... at the time of the pledge, the governing body of the
municipality certifies in a written order, ordinance, or resolution that
none of the impact fee will be used or expended for an improvement or
expansion not identified in the plan.

(e) A certification under Subsection (d) (2) is sufficient evidence

that an impact fee pledged will not be used or expended for an improvement

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

or expansion that is not identified in the capital improvements plan.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 1995, 74th Leg., ch. 90, Sec. 1, eff. May 16, 1995.

Sec. 395.013. ITEMS NOT PAYABRLE BY FEE. Impact fees may not be
adopted or used to pay for:

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 47 4/25



1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...

(1) construction, acquisition, or expansion of public facilities
or assets other than capital improvements or facility expansions identified
in the capital improvements plan;

(2) repair, operation, or maintenance of existing or new capital
improvements or facility expansions;

(3) upgrading, updating, expanding, or replacing exXisting capital
improvements to serve existing development in order to meet stricter
safety, efficiency, environmental, or regulatory standards;

(4) upgrading, updating, expanding, or replacing existing capital
improvements to provide better service to existing development;

(5) administrative and operating costs’ of the political
subdivision, except the Edwards Underground Water District or a river
authority that is authorized elsewhere by state law to.charge fees that
function as impact fees may use impact fees to pay its administrative and
operating costs;

(6) principal payments and interest or other finance charges on

bonds or other indebtedness, except as allowed by Section 395.012.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.014. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN. (a) The political
subdivision shall use qualified professionals to prepare the capital
improvements plan and to calculate the impact fee. The capital
improvements plan must contain specific enumeration of the following items:

(1) a description of the existing capital improvements within the
service area and the costs to upgrade, update, improve, expand, or replace
the improvements to meet existing needs and usage and stricter safety,
efficiency, environmental, or regulatory standards, which shall be prepared
by a qualified professional engineer licensed to perform the professional
engineering services in this state;

(2) an analysis of the total capacity, the level of current

usage, and commitments for usage of capacity of the existing capital

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

improvements, which shall be prepared by a qualified professional engineer
licensed to perform the professional engineering services in this state;

(3) a description of all or the parts of the capital improvements
or facility expansions and their costs necessitated by and attributable to
new development in the service area based on the approved land use
assumptions, which shall be prepared by a qualified professional engineer

licensed to perform the professional engineering services in this state;

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 4 8 5/25


http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.012

1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...

(4) a definitive table establishing the specific level or
quantity of use, consumption, generation, or discharge of a service unit
for each category of capital improvements or facility expansions and an
equivalency or conversion table establishing the ratio of a service unit to
various types of land uses, including residential, commercial, and
industrial;

(5) the total number of projected service units _.necessitated by
and attributable to new development within the service area based on the
approved land use assumptions and calculated in accordance with generally
accepted engineering or planning criteria;

(6) the projected demand for capital improvements or facility
expansions required by new service units projected over a reasonable period
of time, not to exceed 10 years; and

(7) a plan for awarding:

(A) a credit for the portion of ad wvalorem tax and utility
service revenues generated by new service units during the program period
that is used for the payment of improvements, including the payment of
debt, that are included in the capital improvements plan; or

(B) in the alternative, a credit equal to 50 percent of the
total projected cost of implementing the capital improvements plan.

(b) The analysis required by Subsection (a) (3) may be prepared on a
systemwide basis within the service area for each major category of capital
improvement or facdlity expansion for the designated service area.

(c) The governing body of the political subdivision is responsible
for supervising the implementation of the capital improvements plan in a

timely manner.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 2, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Sec. 395.015. | MAXIMUM FEE PER SERVICE UNIT. (a) The impact fee per

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

service unit may not exceed the amount determined by subtracting the amount
in Section 395.014 (a) (7) from the costs of the capital improvements
described by Section 395.014(a) (3) and dividing that amount by the total
number of projected service units described by Section 395.014 (a) (5).

(b) If the number of new service units projected over a reasonable
period of time is less than the total number of new service units shown by
the approved land use assumptions at full development of the service area,
the maximum impact fee per service unit shall be calculated by dividing the

costs of the part of the capital improvements necessitated by and

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 49 6/25


http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.014
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.014
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.014

1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...
attributable to projected new service units described by Section 395.014 (a)

(6) by the projected new service units described in that section.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 3, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Sec. 395.016. TIME FOR ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION OF‘ FEE. (a) This
subsection applies only to impact fees adopted and land platted before June
20, 1987. For land that has been platted in accordance with Subchapter A,
Chapter 212, or the subdivision or platting procedures of a political
subdivision before June 20, 1987, or land on which new development occurs
or is proposed without platting, the political subdivision may assess the
impact fees at any time during the development approval .and building
process. Except as provided by Section 395.019, the political subdivision
may collect the fees at either the time of recordation of the subdivision
plat or connection to the political subdivision's water or sewer system or
at the time the political subdivision.issues either the building permit or
the certificate of occupancy.

(b) This subsection applies only to impact fees adopted before June
20, 1987, and land platted after that date. For new development which is
platted in accordance with Subchapter A, Chapter 212, or the subdivision or
platting procedures<of a political subdivision after June 20, 1987, the
political subdivision may assess the impact fees before or at the time of
recordation. Except as provided by Section 395.019, the political
subdivision may collect .the fees at either the time of recordation of the
subdivision plat or connection to the political subdivision's water or
sewer system or at the time the political subdivision issues either the
building permit or the certificate of occupancy.

(c) This subsection applies only to impact fees adopted after June
20, 1987. For new development which is platted in accordance with
Subchapter A, Chapter 212, or the subdivision or platting procedures of a

political subdivision before the adoption of an impact fee, an impact fee

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

may not be collected on any service unit for which a valid building permit
is issued within one year after the date of adoption of the impact fee.

(d) This subsection applies only to land platted in accordance with
Subchapter A, Chapter 212, or the subdivision or platting procedures of a
political subdivision after adoption of an impact fee adopted after June
20, 1987. The political subdivision shall assess the impact fees before or
at the time of recordation of a subdivision plat or other plat under

Subchapter A, Chapter 212, or the subdivision or platting ordinance or

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 5 O 7125


http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.014
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=212
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.019
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=212
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.019
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=212
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=212
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=212

1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...
procedures of any political subdivision in the official records of the
county clerk of the county in which the tract is located. Except as
provided by Section 395.019, if the political subdivision has water and
wastewater capacity available:

(1) the political subdivision shall collect the fees at the time
the political subdivision issues a building permit;

(2) for land platted outside the corporate boundaries of a
municipality, the municipality shall collect the fees at the time an
application for an individual meter connection to the/municipality's water
or wastewater system is filed; or

(3) a political subdivision that lacks authority to issue
building permits in the area where the impact. fee applies shall collect the
fees at the time an application is filed for an individual meter connection
to the political subdivision's water or wastewater system.

(e) For land on which new development occurs or is proposed to occur
without platting, the political subdivision may assess the impact fees at
any time during the development and building process and may collect the
fees at either the time of recordation of the subdivision plat or
connection to the political subdivision'"s water or sewer system or at the
time the political subdivision issues either the building permit or the
certificate of occupancy.

(f) An "assessment" means a determination of the amount of the impact
fee in effect on the date or occurrence provided in this section and is the
maximum amount that can be charged per service unit of such development.

No specific act by the poditical subdivision is required.

(g) Notwithstanding Subsections (a)-(e) and Section 395.017, the
political subdivision may reduce or waive an impact fee for any service
unit that would qualify as affordable housing under 42 U.S.C. Section
12745, as amended, once the service unit is constructed. If affordable
housing as defined by 42 U.S.C. Section 12745, as amended, 1is not
constructed, the political subdivision may reverse its decision to waive or

reduce the impact fee, and the political subdivision may assess an impact

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

fee at any time during the development approval or building process or

after the building process if an impact fee was not already assessed.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 980, Sec. 52, eff. Sept. 1, 1997;
Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 4, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 5 1 8/25


http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.019
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.017

1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...
Sec. 395.017. ADDITIONAL FEE PROHIBITED; EXCEPTION. After

assessment of the impact fees attributable to the new development or
execution of an agreement for payment of impact fees, additional impact
fees or increases in fees may not be assessed against the tract for any
reason unless the number of service units to be developed on the tract
increases. In the event of the increase in the number of service units,
the impact fees to be imposed are limited to the amount attributable to the

additional service units.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.018. AGREEMENT WITH OWNER REGARDING PAYMENT. A political
subdivision is authorized to enter into an agreement with the owner of a
tract of land for which the plat has been recorded providing for the time

and method of payment of the impact fees.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.019. COLLECTION OF FEES IF.SERVICES NOT AVAILABLE. Except
for roadway facilities, impact fees may be assessed but may not be
collected in areas where services are not currently available unless:

(1) the collection is made to pay for a capital improvement or
facility expansion that has/been identified in the capital improvements
plan and the political subdivision commits to commence construction within
two years, under duly awarded and executed contracts or commitments of
staff time covering substantially all of the work required to provide
service, and to have the service available within a reasonable period of
time considering the type of capital improvement or facility expansion to
be constructed, but in no event longer than five years;

(2) the political subdivision agrees that the owner of a new

development may construct or finance the capital improvements or facility

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

expansions and agrees that the costs incurred or funds advanced will be
credited against the impact fees otherwise due from the new development or
agrees to reimburse the owner for such costs from impact fees paid from
other new developments that will use such capital improvements or facility
expansions, which fees shall be collected and reimbursed to the owner at
the time the other new development records its plat; or

(3) an owner voluntarily requests the political subdivision to

reserve capacity to serve future development, and the political subdivision

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 5 2 9/25



1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...

and owner enter into a valid written agreement.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.020. ENTITLEMENT TO SERVICES. Any new development for which
an impact fee has been paid is entitled to the permanent use and benefit of
the services for which the fee was exacted and is entitled to receive
immediate service from any existing facilities with actual capacity to
serve the new service units, subject to compliance with other wvalid

regulations.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.021. AUTHORITY OF POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS TO SPEND FUNDS TO
REDUCE FEES. Political subdivisions may spend funds from any lawful source
to pay for all or a part of the capital improvements or facility expansions

to reduce the amount of impact fees.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.022. <AUTHORITY OF POLITICAL SUBDIVISION TO PAY FEES. (a)
Political subdivisions and other governmental entities may pay impact fees
imposed under this chapter«

(b) A school district is not required to pay impact fees imposed
under this chapter unless the board of trustees of the district consents to
the payment of the fees by entering a contract with the political
subdivision that imposes the fees. The contract may contain terms the
board of trustees considers advisable to provide for the payment of the

fees.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by:

Acts 2007, 80th Leg., R.S., Ch. 250 (S.B. 883), Sec. 1, eff. May 25,
2007.

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

Sec. 395.023. CREDITS AGAINST ROADWAY FACILITIES FEES. Any
construction of, contributions to, or dedications of off-site roadway

facilities agreed to or required by a political subdivision as a condition

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 5 3 10/25


http://www.legis.state.tx.us/tlodocs/80R/billtext/html/SB00883F.HTM

1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...
of development approval shall be credited against roadway facilities impact

fees otherwise due from the development.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.024. ACCOUNTING FOR FEES AND INTEREST. (a) The order,
ordinance, or resolution levying an impact fee must provide that all funds
collected through the adoption of an impact fee shall be deposited in
interest-bearing accounts clearly identifying the category of capital
improvements or facility expansions within the serxvice area for which the
fee was adopted.

(b) Interest earned on impact fees is considered funds of the account
on which it is earned and is subject to aldl restrictioens placed on use of
impact fees under this chapter.

(c) Impact fee funds may be spent only for- the purposes for which the
impact fee was imposed as shown by the capital improvements plan and as
authorized by this chapter.

(d) The records of the accounts into which impact fees are deposited
shall be open for public inspection and copying during ordinary business

hours.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.025.. REFUNDS. (a) On_the request of an owner of the
property on which an impact fee has been paid, the political subdivision
shall refund the impact fee if existing facilities are available and
service is denied or the political subdivision has, after collecting the
fee‘when service was not available, failed to commence construction within
two years or service is not available within a reasonable period
considering the type of capital improvement or facility expansion to be
constructed, but in no event later than five years from the date of payment
under Section 3954019 (1).

(b) "Repealed by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 9, eff. Sept. 1,

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

2001.

(c) The political subdivision shall refund any impact fee or part of
it that is not spent as authorized by this chapter within 10 years after
the date of payment.

(d) Any refund shall bear interest calculated from the date of

collection to the date of refund at the statutory rate as set forth in

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 5 4 11/25


http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.019

1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...
Section 302.002, Finance Code, or its successor statute.

(e) All refunds shall be made to the record owner of the property at
the time the refund is paid. However, if the impact fees were paid by
another political subdivision or governmental entity, payment shall be made
to the political subdivision or governmental entity.

(f) The owner of the property on which an impact fee has been paid or
another political subdivision or governmental entity that paid the impact

fee has standing to sue for a refund under this section«

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 1396, Sec. 37, eff. Sept. 1, 1997;
Acts 1999, 76th Leg., ch. 62, Sec. 7.82, eff. Sept. 1, 1999, Acts 2001,
77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 9, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

SUBCHAPTER C. PROCEDURES FOR ADOPTION OF IMPACT FEE

Sec. 395.041. COMPLIANCE WITH PROCEDURES REQUIRED. Except as
otherwise provided by this chapter, a political subdivision must comply

with this subchapter to levy an impact fee.

Added by Acts 1989, 7lst-Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.0411. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN. The political subdivision
shall provide for a capital improvements plan to be developed by qualified
professionals using generally accepted engineering and planning practices

in accordance with Section 395.014.

Added by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 5, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Sec. 395.042. HEARING ON LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS PLAN./ To impose an impact fee, a political subdivision must

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

adopt an order, ordinance, or resolution establishing a public hearing date
to consider the land use assumptions and capital improvements plan for the

designated service area.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 5, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 5 5 12/25


http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=FI&Value=302.002
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.014

1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...

Sec. 395.043. INFORMATION ABOUT LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND CAPITAL

IMPROVEMENTS PLAN AVAILABLE TO PUBLIC. On or before the date of the first

publication of the notice of the hearing on the land use assumptions and

capital improvements plan, the political subdivision shall make available

to the public its land use assumptions, the time period of the projections,

and a description of the capital improvement facilities that. may be

proposed.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), effsi Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 5, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Sec. 395.044. NOTICE OF HEARING ON LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS PLAN. (a) Before the 30th day before the date of the hearing

on the land use assumptions and capital improvements plan, the political

subdivision shall send a notice of the hearing by certified mail to any

person who has given written notice by certified or registered mail to the

municipal secretary or other designated official of the political

subdivision requesting notice of the hearing within two years preceding the

date of adoption of the order, ordinance, or resolution setting the public

hearing.
(b) The politicad subdivision shall publish notice of the hearing
before the 30th day before the date set for the hearing, in one or more

newspapers of general circulation in each county in which the political

subdivision lies. However; a river authority that is authorized elsewhere

by state law to charge fees that function as impact fees may publish the
required newspaper notice only in each county in which the service area
lies.

(c) The notice must contain:

(1) a headline to read as follows:

"NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

PLAN RELATING TO POSSIBLE ADOPTION OF IMPACT FEES"

(2) the time, date, and location of the hearing;

(3) @ statement that the purpose of the hearing is to consider
the land use assumptions and capital improvements plan under which an
impact fee may be imposed; and

(4) a statement that any member of the public has the right to
appear at the hearing and present evidence for or against the land use

assumptions and capital improvements plan.

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 5 6

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

13/25



1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...
Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 5, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Sec. 395.045. APPROVAL OF LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS PLAN REQUIRED. (a) After the public hearing on<the land use
assumptions and capital improvements plan, the political subdivision shall
determine whether to adopt or reject an ordinance, order; or resolution
approving the land use assumptions and capital improvements plan.

(b) The political subdivision, within 30 days<after the date of the
public hearing, shall approve or disapprove the land use assumptions and
capital improvements plan.

(c) An ordinance, order, or resolution’ approving the land use
assumptions and capital improvements plan<may not be adopted as an

emergency measure.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 5, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Sec. 395.0455. SYSTEMWIDE LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS: (a) In lieu of
adopting land use assumptions for each service area, a political
subdivision may, except for storm water, drainage, flood control, and
roadway facilities, adopt systemwide land use assumptions, which cover all
of the area subject to the Jurisdiction of the political subdivision for
the purpose of imposing impact fees under this chapter.

(b) Prior to adopting systemwide land use assumptions, a political
subdivision shall follow the public notice, hearing, and other requirements
for adopting land use assumptions.

(c) After adoption of systemwide land use assumptions, a political
subdivision is not required to adopt additional land use assumptions for a
service area for water supply, treatment, and distribution facilities or

wastewater collection and treatment facilities as a prerequisite to the

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

adoption of a capital improvements plan or impact fee, provided the capital
improvements pdan and impact fee are consistent with the systemwide land

use assumptions.
Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 566, Sec. 1(b), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.047. HEARING ON IMPACT FEE. On adoption of the land use

assumptions and capital improvements plan, the governing body shall adopt

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 5 7 14/25



1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...
an order or resolution setting a public hearing to discuss the imposition
of the impact fee. The public hearing must be held by the governing body
of the political subdivision to discuss the proposed ordinance, order, or

resolution imposing an impact fee.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 5, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Sec. 395.049. ©NOTICE OF HEARING ON IMPACT FEE. (a) Before the 30th
day before the date of the hearing on the imposition of an impact fee, the
political subdivision shall send a notice of the hearing by certified mail
to any person who has given written notice by certified or registered mail
to the municipal secretary or other designated official of the political
subdivision requesting notice of the hearing within' two years preceding the
date of adoption of the order or resolution setting the public hearing.

(b) The political subdivision shall publish notice of the hearing
before the 30th day before the date set for the hearing, in one or more
newspapers of general circulation in each county in which the political
subdivision lies. However, a river authority that is authorized elsewhere
by state law to charge fees that function as impact fees may publish the
required newspaper notice only in each county in which the service area
lies.

(c) The notice must contain the following:

(1) @a headline to read as follows:
"NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON ADOPTION OF IMPACT FEES"

(2) the time, date, and location of the hearing;
(3) a statement that the purpose of the hearing is to consider

the adoption of an impact fee;

o))
3
(O

(4) the amount of the proposed impact fee per service unit;
(5) a statement that any member of the public has the right to

appear at the hearing and present evidence for or against the plan and

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

proposed fee.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 5, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Sec. 395.050. ADVISORY COMMITTEE COMMENTS ON IMPACT FEES. The

advisory committee created under Section 395.058 shall file its written

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 5 8 15/25


http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.058

1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...
comments on the proposed impact fees before the fifth business day before

the date of the public hearing on the imposition of the fees.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 5, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Sec. 395.051. APPROVAL OF IMPACT FEE REQUIRED. (a) The political
subdivision, within 30 days after the date of the public hearing on the
imposition of an impact fee, shall approve or disapprove the imposition of
an impact fee.

(b) An ordinance, order, or resolution approving the imposition of an

impact fee may not be adopted as an emergency measure.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 5, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Sec. 395.052. PERIODIC UPDATE OF LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS PLAN REQUIRED. (a) " A political subdivision imposing an
impact fee shall update the land use assumptions and capital improvements
plan at least every five years. The initial five-year period begins on the
day the capital improvements plan is adopted.

(b) The political subdivision shall review and evaluate its current
land use assumptions and shall cause an update of the capital improvements

plan to be prepared in accordance with Subchapter B.

Added by Acts 1989, 71lst Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 6, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Sec. 395.053.  HEARING ON UPDATED LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS PLAN. ' The governing body of the political subdivision shall,

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

within 60 days after the date it receives the update of the land use
assumptions and .the capital improvements plan, adopt an order setting a
public hearing to discuss and review the update and shall determine whether

to amend the plan.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 5 9 16/25



1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...
Sec. 395.054. HEARING ON AMENDMENTS TO LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS, CAPITAL

IMPROVEMENTS PLAN, OR IMPACT FEE. A public hearing must be held by the
governing body of the political subdivision to discuss the proposed
ordinance, order, or resolution amending land use assumptions, the capital
improvements plan, or the impact fee. On or before the date of the first
publication of the notice of the hearing on the amendments, the land use
assumptions and the capital improvements plan, including the amount of any
proposed amended impact fee per service unit, shall be made available to
the public.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a)y eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.055. NOTICE OF HEARING ON AMENDMENTS TO LAND USE
ASSUMPTIONS, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN, OR IMPACT FEE. (a) The notice and
hearing procedures prescribed by Sections 395.044 (a) and (b) apply to a
hearing on the amendment of land use assumptions, a capital improvements
plan, or an impact fee.

(b) The notice of a hearing under this section must contain the
following:

(1) a headline to read as follows:
"NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON AMENDMENT OF IMPACT FEES"

(2) the time, date, and location of the hearing;

(3) a statement that the purpose of the hearing is to consider
the amendment of land use assumptions and a capital improvements plan and
the imposition of an impact fee; and

(4) ra statement that any member of the public has the right to

appear at the hearing and present evidence for or against the update.

Added by Acts 1989, 71lst Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 345, Sec. 7, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

Sec. 395.056. ADVISORY COMMITTEE COMMENTS ON AMENDMENTS. The
advisory committee created under Section 395.058 shall file its written
comments on the proposed amendments to the land use assumptions, capital
improvements plan, and impact fee before the fifth business day before the

date of the public hearing on the amendments.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 60 17/25


http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.044
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.058

1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...

Sec. 395.057. APPROVAL OF AMENDMENTS REQUIRED. (a) The political
subdivision, within 30 days after the date of the public hearing on the
amendments, shall approve or disapprove the amendments of the land use
assumptions and the capital improvements plan and modification of an impact
fee.

(b) An ordinance, order, or resolution approving the amendments to
the land use assumptions, the capital improvements plan, and imposition of

an impact fee may not be adopted as an emergency measure.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.0575. DETERMINATION THAT NO UPDATE OF< LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS,
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN OR IMPACT FEES IS NEEDED. (a) If, at the time
an update under Section 395.052 is required, the governing body determines
that no change to the land use assumptions, capital improvements plan, or
impact fee is needed, it may, as an alternative to the updating
requirements of Sections 395.052-395.057, do the following:

(1) The governing body of the political subdivision shall, upon
determining that an update. is unnecessary and 60 days before publishing the
final notice under this section, send notice of its determination not to
update the land use assumptions, capital improvements plan, and impact fee
by certified mail to any person who has, within two years preceding the
date that the final notice of this matter is to be published, give written
notice by certified or<registered mail to the municipal secretary or other

designated official of the political subdivision requesting notice of

hearings related to impact fees. The notice must contain the information
inSubsections (b) (2)-(5).
(2) The political subdivision shall publish notice of its

determination once a week for three consecutive weeks in one or more

newspapers with general circulation in each county in which the political

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

subdivision lies.. However, a river authority that is authorized elsewhere
by state law to charge fees that function as impact fees may publish the
required newspaper notice only in each county in which the service area
lies. The notice of public hearing may not be in the part of the paper in
which legal notices and classified ads appear and may not be smaller than
one-quarter page of a standard-size or tabloid-size newspaper, and the
headline on the notice must be in 18-point or larger type.

(b) The notice must contain the following:

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 6 1 18/25


http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.052

1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...

(1) a headline to read as follows:
"NOTICE OF DETERMINATION NOT TO UPDATE

LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

PLAN, OR IMPACT FEES";

(2) a statement that the governing body of the.political
subdivision has determined that no change to the land use assumptions,
capital improvements plan, or impact fee is necessazry;

(3) an easily understandable description and a map of the service
area in which the updating has been determined . to be unnecessary;

(4) a statement that if, within a specified date, which date
shall be at least 60 days after publication of the first notice, a person
makes a written request to the designated official ©of the political
subdivision requesting that the land use assumptions, capital improvements
plan, or impact fee be updated, the governing body must comply with the
request by following the requirements.of Sections 395.052-395.057; and

(5) a statement identifying the name and mailing address of the
official of the political subdivision to whom a request for an update
should be sent.

(c) The advisory committee shall file its written comments on the
need for updating the land use assumptions, capital improvements plans, and
impact fee before the fifth business day before the earliest notice of the
government's decision that/no update is necessary is mailed or published.

(d) If, by the date specified in Subsection (b) (4), a person requests
in writing that the land use assumptions, capital improvements plan, or
impact fee be updated, the governing body shall cause an update of the land
use assumptions and capital improvements plan to be prepared in accordance
with Sections 395.052-395.057.

(e) An ordinance, order, or resolution determining the need for
updating land use assumptions, a capital improvements plan, or an impact

fee may not be adopted as an emergency measure.

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 566, Sec. 1(d), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.058. ADVISORY COMMITTEE. (a) On or before the date on
which the order, ordinance, or resolution is adopted under Section 395.042,
the political subdivision shall appoint a capital improvements advisory

committee.

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 62 19/25


http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.042

1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...

(b) The advisory committee is composed of not less than five members
who shall be appointed by a majority vote of the governing body of the
political subdivision. Not less than 40 percent of the membership of the
advisory committee must be representatives of the real estate, development,
or building industries who are not employees or officials of a political
subdivision or governmental entity. If the political subdivision has a
planning and zoning commission, the commission may act as _.the advisory
committee if the commission includes at least one representative of the
real estate, development, or building industry who isinot an employee or
official of a political subdivision or governmental entity. If no such
representative is a member of the planning and zoning commission, the
commission may still act as the advisory committee if at least one such
representative is appointed by the politicad subdivision as an ad hoc
voting member of the planning and zoning ‘commission when it acts as the
advisory committee. If the impact fee is to be applied in the
extraterritorial jurisdiction of the political subdivision, the membership
must include a representative from that area.

(c) The advisory committee serves in an advisory capacity and is
established to:

(1) advise and assist the political subdivision in adopting land
use assumptions;

(2) review the capital improvements plan and file written
comments;

(3) moenitor and evaluate implementation of the capital
improvements plan;

(4) file semiannual reports with respect to the progress of the
capital improvements plan and report to the political subdivision any
perceived inequities in implementing the plan or imposing the impact fee;
and

(5) advise the political subdivision of the need to update or
revise the land use assumptions, capital improvements plan, and impact fee.

(d). The political subdivision shall make available to the advisory

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

committee any professional reports with respect to developing and
implementing the capital improvements plan.

(e) The governing body of the political subdivision shall adopt
procedural rules for the advisory committee to follow in carrying out its

duties.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 6 3 20/25



1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...
SUBCHAPTER D. OTHER PROVISIONS

Sec. 395.071. DUTIES TO BE PERFORMED WITHIN TIME LIMITS. If the
governing body of the political subdivision does not perform a duty imposed
under this chapter within the prescribed period, a person who has paid an
impact fee or an owner of land on which an impact fee has been paid has the
right to present a written request to the governing body of the political
subdivision stating the nature of the unperformed duty and requesting that

it be performed within 60 days after the date of the request. If the

under this chapter and is late in being performed, it shall cause the duty =

ot
@)
Q
-
0]
3
Q
()
=)
'_l
ot
oy
'_l
o]
[&))
(@)
(o}
Q

=
0
QO
|—h
P
)
[}
-
oy
)
(o}
QD
ot
)
O
'y
o+
=
)
[}
()

Q
c
)
0
purt
QD
o]
(o}
Q
O
o]
art
'_l
3
7
)
c
o]
art
'_l
'_l

completion.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82¢(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.072. RECORDS OF HEARINGS. A record must be made of any
public hearing provided for by this chapter. The record shall be
maintained and be made available for public inspection by the political

subdivision for at least 10 years after the date of the hearing.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

4 OL ONILAAIN FHL 404 LAMOVd ONILLAA

Sec. 395.073. CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF STATE AND LOCAL RESTRICTIONS. Anytlj
state or local restrictdions that apply to the imposition of an impact fee
in a political subdivision where an impact fee is proposed are cumulative

with the restrictions in this chapter.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.074./ PRIOR IMPACT FEES REPLACED BY FEES UNDER THIS CHAPTER.

¥20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH

An impact fee that is in place on June 20, 1987, must be replaced by an
impact fee made under this chapter on or before June 20, 1990. However,
any political subdivision having an impact fee that has not been replaced
under this chapter on or before June 20, 1988, is liable to any party who,
after June 20, 1988, pays an impact fee that exceeds the maximum permitted
under Subchapter B by more than 10 percent for an amount equal to two times
the difference between the maximum impact fee allowed and the actual impact

fee imposed, plus reasonable attorney's fees and court costs.

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 64 21/25



1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.075. NO EFFECT ON TAXES OR OTHER CHARGES. This chapter does
not prohibit, affect, or regulate any tax, fee, charge, or assessment

specifically authorized by state law.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.076. MORATORIUM ON DEVELOPMENT PROHIBITED. A moratorium may
not be placed on new development for the purpose of awaiting the completion
of all or any part of the process necessary to develop, adopt, or update

land use assumptions, a capital improvements plan, or an impact fee.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 441, Sec. 2, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Sec. 395.077. APPEALS. (a) © A person who has exhausted all
administrative remedies within the political subdivision and who is
aggrieved by a final decision is entitled to trial de novo under this
chapter.

(b) A suit to contest an impact fee must be filed within 90 days
after the datesof adoption<of the ordinance, order, or resolution
establishing the impact fee.

(c) Except for roadway facilities, a person who has paid an impact
fee or _an owner of property on which an impact fee has been paid is
entitled to specific performance of the services by the political
subdivision for which the fee was paid.

(d) This section does not require construction of a specific facility

to provide the services.

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

(e) Any suit/must be filed in the county in which the major part of
the land area of  the political subdivision is located. A successful
litigant shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees and court

costs.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 6 5 22/25



1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...
Sec. 395.078. SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE WITH NOTICE REQUIREMENTS. An
impact fee may not be held invalid because the public notice requirements

were not complied with if compliance was substantial and in good faith.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.

Sec. 395.079. IMPACT FEE FOR STORM WATER, DRAINAGE,  AND FLOOD CONTROL
IN POPULOUS COUNTY. (a) Any county that has a population of 3.3 million
or more or that borders a county with a population of 3.3 million or more,
and any district or authority created under Articlde XVI, Section 59, of the
Texas Constitution within any such county that ds authorized to prowvide
storm water, drainage, and flood control facdilities, is authorized to
impose impact fees to provide storm water, drainage, and flood control
improvements necessary to accommodate new development.

(b) The imposition of impact fees authorized by Subsection (a) is
exempt from the requirements of Sections 395.025, 395.052-395.057, and
395.074 unless the political subdivision proposes to increase the impact
fee.

(c) Any political subdivision described by Subsection (a) is
authorized to pledge or otherwise contractually obligate all or part of the
impact fees to the payment of principal and interest on bonds, notes, or
other obligations issued or incurred by or on behalf of the political
subdivision and to the payment of any other contractual obligations.

(d) An impact fee adopted by a political subdivision under Subsection
(a) may not be reduced if:

(1) the political subdivision has pledged or otherwise
contractually obligated all or part of the impact fees to the payment of
principal and interest on bonds, notes, or other obligations issued by or
on' behalf of the political subdivision; and

(2) the political subdivision agrees in the pledge or contract
not to reduce the impact fees during the term of the bonds, notes, or other

contractual obligations.

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 669, Sec. 107, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Sec. 395.080. CHAPTER NOT APPLICABLE TO CERTAIN WATER-RELATED SPECIAL
DISTRICTS. (a) This chapter does not apply to impact fees, charges, fees,

assessments, or contributions:

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 6 6 23/25


http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CN&Value=16.59
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.025
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=395.074

1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...
(1) paid by or charged to a district created under Article XVI,
Section 59, of the Texas Constitution to another district created under
that constitutional provision if both districts are required by law to
obtain approval of their bonds by the Texas Natural Resource Conservation
Commission; or
(2) charged by an entity if the impact fees, charges, fees,
assessments, or contributions are approved by the Texas Natural Resource
Conservation Commission.
(b) Any district created under Article XVI, Section 59, or Article
III, Section 52, of the Texas Constitution may petition the Texas Natural
Resource Conservation Commission for approval offany proposed impact fees,
charges, fees, assessments, or contributions.. The commission shall adopt
rules for reviewing the petition and may charge the petitioner fees
adequate to cover the cost of processing ‘and considering the petition. The
rules shall require notice substantially the same_.as that required by this
chapter for the adoption of impact fees and shall afford opportunity for
all affected parties to participate.

Added by Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 1, Sec. 82(a), eff. Aug. 28, 1989.
Amended by Acts 1995, 74th Leg., ch. 76, Sec. 11.257, eff. Sept. 1, 1995.

Sec. 395.081. FEES FOR ADJOINING LANDOWNERS IN CERTAIN
MUNICIPALITIES. (a) This section applies only to a municipality with a
population of 115,000 or less that constitutes more than three-fourths of
the population of the county in which the majority of the area of the
municipality is located.

(b) A municipality that has not adopted an impact fee under this
chapter that is constructing a capital improvement, including sewer or
waterline or drainage or roadway facilities, from the municipality to a
development located within or outside the municipality's boundaries, in its
discretion, may allow a landowner whose land adjoins the capital

improvement or is within a specified distance from the capital improvement,

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

as determined by  the governing body of the municipality, to connect to the
capital improvement if:

(1) “the governing body of the municipality has adopted a finding
under Subsection (c¢); and

(2) the landowner agrees to pay a proportional share of the cost
of the capital improvement as determined by the governing body of the

municipality and agreed to by the landowner.

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 6 7 24/25


http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CN&Value=16.59
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CN&Value=16.59
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CN&Value=3.52

1/14/2020 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 395. FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED BY NEW DEVELOPMENT IN MU...
(c) Before a municipality may allow a landowner to connect to a
capital improvement under Subsection (b), the municipality shall adopt a
finding that the municipality will benefit from allowing the landowner to
connect to the capital improvement. The finding shall describe the benefit
to be received by the municipality.
(d) A determination of the governing body of a municipality, or its
officers or employees, under this section is a discretionary function of
the municipality and the municipality and its officers or employees are not

liable for a determination made under this section.

Added by Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 1150, Sec. 1, eff. June 19, 1997.
Amended by:

Acts 2011, 82nd Leg., R.S., Ch. 1043 (H.B. 3111), Sec. 5, eff. June
17, 2011.

Acts 2011, 82nd Leg., R.S., Ch. 1163 (H.B. 2702), Sec. 100, eff.
September 1, 2011.

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.395.htm 6 8 25/25


http://www.legis.state.tx.us/tlodocs/82R/billtext/html/HB03111F.HTM
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/tlodocs/82R/billtext/html/HB02702F.HTM

ATTACHMENT B

EXISTING WATER PLANT CAPACITY LYSIS

I:l QUIDDITY

ENGINEERING

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

69

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT B

EXISTING WATER PLANT CAPACITY ANALYSIS

CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
NOVEMBER 2023

1. Demand Conditions

yeRSEY
of

(\S

S StAR oS

%

3\-‘ * cl]'},

&F
4’/7;' * 39‘6‘\

Total Average

Type Connections Unit Flowrate Daily Flow
SF Residential 2,243 250 gpd/conn 560,800 gpd
MF Residential 1,544 125 gpd/conn 193,000 gpd
Commercial 158 1,500 gpd/conn 237,000 gpd
Industrial 0 1,500 gpd/conn 0 gpd
Mixed Use 0 375 gpd/conn 0 gpd
Irrigation 850 300 gpd/conn 255,000 gpd
Public 66 1,000 gpd/conn 66,000 gpd
Accountability/Losses 10.0% 145,000 gpd
Total 4,861 1,456,800 gpd
Effective Unit Flowrate Per Connection = 300 gpd/conn
2. Supply Capacity {TAC §290.45(b)(1)(D)(i)} Capacity Flowrate
TCEQ Minimum Required = (0.6 gpm/conn)(4,861.conn) = 2,917 gpm
Existing Well No. 1 @ Village Water Plant: 1 @ 900 gpm = 900 gpm
Existing Well No. 1 @ West Water Plant: 1 @ 1,550 gpm = 1,550 gpm
2,450 gpm
(2,450 gpm)(1,440 min/day)/(2.4) = 1,470,000 gpd
Surface Water Supply @ Seattle Water Plant : 1,042 gpm = 1,042 gpm *
3. Total Storage Capacity {TAC §290.45(b)(1)(D)(ii)}
TCEQ Minimum Required = (200 gal/conn)(4,861 conn) = 972,200 gal
Existing Ground Storage Tank @ Seattle Water Plant =1 @ 300,000 gallons = 300,000 gal
Existing Ground Storage Tank @ Seattle Water Plant = 1 @:500,000 gallons = 500,000 gal
Existing Ground Storage Tank @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 420,000 gallons = 420,000 gal
Existing Elevated Storage Tank @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 250,000 gallons = 250,000 gal
Existing Ground Storage Tank @ West Water Plant = 1 @ 500,000 gallons = 500,000 gal
Existing Elevated Storage Tank @ Congo Ln =1 @ 500,000 gallons = 500,000 gal
2,470,000 gal
. Elevated Storage Tank Capacity {TAC §290.45(b)(1)(D)(iv)}
TCEQ Minimum Required = (100 gal/conn)(4,861 conn) = 486,100 gal
Existing Elevated Storage Tank @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 250,000 gallons = 250,000 gal
Existing Elevated Storage Tank @ Congo Ln =1 @ 500,000 gallons = 500,000 gal
750,000 gal
Existing Pressure Tank @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 25,000 gallons = 25,000 gal

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

70

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



5. Booster Pump Capacity {TAC §290.45(b)(1)(D)(iii)}

TCEQ Minimum Required = (2 gpm/conn)(4,861 conn) = 9,722 gpm
or (1,456,800 gpd)*(2.4*1.25)/(1,440 min/day) = 3,035 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Seattle Water Plant=2 @ 1,100 gpm = 2,200 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Village Water Plant=1 @ 100 gpm = 100 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Village Water Plant=1 @ 250 gpm = 250 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 500 gpm = 500 gpm
Existing Pumps @ West Water Plant =1 @ 250 gpm = 250 gpm
Existing Pumps @ West Water Plant=1 @ 750 gpm = 750 gpm
Existing Pumps @ West Water Plant=1 @ 1,000 gpm = 1,000 gpm
5,050 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Seattle Water Plant=1 @ 1,100 gpm = 1,100 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Village Water Plant=1 @ 750 gpm = 750 gpm
Existing Pumps @ West Water Plant=1 @ 1,000 gpm = 1,000 gpm
(5,050 gpm)(1,440 min/day)/(1.25)/(2.4) = 2,424,000 gpd
Total Plant Capacity = 1,470,000 gpd

NOTES: (Corresponding to the numbered items)
1. Existing connection counts are based on billing data'provided by the City for August 2023. Daily flow rates are based on well and
surface water meter data provided by the City for September 2020 through August 2023. Projected connection counts are based on
the currently undeveloped lots within the City's system being developed, as well as the developments in the City's ETJ where new
service is to be installed. A value of 2.4 for the maximum daily demand factor was utilized as established by 30 TAC 290.38 (43) in
lieu of 3 years of daily flow data.

2. The values presented for the water wells are based on the 2023 Inspection Report. The flow of 0.6 gpm/conn is referenced from
the TCEQ's Chapter 290 criteria.The factorof 2.4 shown in the Quiddity calculations was utilized as the ratio of Maximum Daily Flow
(MDF) to Average Daily Flow (ADF): Quiddity's criteria is based on being able to pump the MDF with the well running 24 hrs/day and
back calculating the ADF. (24 hr'run time)/2.4 = 10 hrs on an average day (600 min). Surface water supply is not included in the
supply capacity because no amount of water supply is guaranteed by the City of Houston in the supply contract. Since the City of
Houston cannot guarantee a minimum of 0.35 gpm/connection, Jersey Village is required to have a total well capacity of 0.6
gpm/connection.

3. The total storage capacity required by the TCEQ is 200 gpd/conn. Because the GST does not produce any water, it should not
be considered in the calculation of the system capacity in terms of flow.

4. Elevated storage tank (EST) capacity must be at least 100 gallons per connection to meet the requirements of 30 TAC 290.45(b).
Since the EST capacity is sufficient, the Hydropneumatic tank capacity is not used in calculating the maximum number of connections
allowed.

5. The TCEQ's minimum requirement for booster pumps is 2 gpm/conn or the ability to meet Peak Hourly Flow (PHF) with the
largest unit at each pump station out of service, whichever is lesser. The pumps and sizes not utilized in the calculation are shown
for reference. The PHF is calculated by using the TCEQ's factor of 1.25 for the ratio of PHF to MDF, for systems that meet the EST
capacity rules of greater than 100 gpd/connection. Multiplying the PHF by the MDF as defined in Note No. 1 gives us the ratio of PHF
to ADF and is equal to 2.4.

| J QuIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Analysis\Capacity Analysis\2023 Water Plant Capacity Analysis.xIsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

71

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT C

PROJECTED 2028 WATER PLANT CAPAC NALYSIS

I:l QUIDDITY

ENGINEERING

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

72

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT C

PROJECTED 2028 WATER PLANT CAPACITY ANALYSIS [ b
CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE & %
NOVEMBER 2023 A o W
Y
35 srar cot

1. Demand Conditions

Total Average

Type Connections Unit Flowrate Daily Flow
SF Residential 2,243 250 gpd/conn 560,800 gpd
MF Residential 1,544 125 gpd/conn 193,000 gpd
Commercial 186 1,500 gpd/conn 279,000 gpd
Industrial 54 1,500 gpd/conn 81,000 gpd
Mixed Use 151 375 gpd/conn 56,600 gpd
Irrigation 871 300gpd/conn 261,300 gpd
Public 66 1,000 gpd/conn 66,000 gpd
Accountability/Losses 10.0% 166,500 gpd
Total 5,115 1,664,200 gpd
Effective Unit Flowrate Per Connection = 325 gpd/conn
2. Supply Capacity {TAC §290.45(b)(1)(D)(i)} Capacity Flowrate
TCEQ Minimum Required = (0.6 gpm/conn)(5,115 conn) = 3,069 gpm
Existing Well No. 1 @ Village Water Plant: 1 @ 900 gpm = 900 gpm
Existing Well No. 1 @ West Water Plant: 1 @ 1,550 gpm = 1,550 gpm
Proposed Well @ Future Water Plant No. 4: 1 @ 1,500 gpm = 1,500 gpm
3,950 gpm
(3,950 gpm)(1,440 min/day)/(2.4) = 2,370,000 gpd
Surface Water Supply @ Seattle Water Plant : 1,042 gpm = 1,042 gpm *
3. Total Storage Capacity {TAC §290.45(b)(1)(D)(ii)}
TCEQ Minimum Required = (200 gal/conn)(5,115 conn) = 1,023,000 gal
Existing Ground Storage Tank @ Seattle Water Plant =1.@ 300,000 gallons = 300,000 gal
Existing Ground Storage Tank @ Seattle Water Plant =1 @ 500,000 gallons = 500,000 gal
Existing Ground Storage Tank @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 420,000 gallons = 420,000 gal
Existing Elevated Storage Tank @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 250,000 gallons = 250,000 gal
Existing Ground Storage Tank @ West Water Plant =1 @ 500,000 gallons = 500,000 gal
Existing Elevated Storage Tank @ Congo Ln =1 @ 500,000 gallons = 500,000 gal
2,470,000 gal
4. Elevated Storage Tank Capacity {TAC §290.45(b)(1)(D)(iv)}
TCEQ Minimum Required = (100 gal/conn)(5,115 conn) = 511,500 gal
Existing Elevated Storage Tank @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 250,000 gallons = 250,000 gal
Existing Elevated Storage Tank @ Congo Ln =1 @ 500,000 gallons = 500,000 gal
750,000 gal
Existing Pressure Tank @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 25,000 gallons = 25,000 gal

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

73

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



5. Booster Pump Capacity {TAC §290.45(b)(1)(D)(iii)}

TCEQ Minimum Required = (2 gpm/conn)(5,115 conn) = 10,230 gpm
or (1,664,200 gpd)*(2.4*1.25)/(1,440 min/day) = 3,467 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Seattle Water Plant=2 @ 1,100 gpm = 2,200 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Village Water Plant=1 @ 100 gpm = 100 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 250 gpm = 250 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 500 gpm = 500.gpm
Existing Pumps @ West Water Plant=1 @ 250 gpm = 250 gpm
Existing Pumps @ West Water Plant=1 @ 750 gpm = 750 gpm
Existing Pumps @ West Water Plant=1 @ 1,000 gpm = 1,000 gpm
New Pump @ Future Water Plant4 =1 @ 600 gpm = 600 gpm
5,650 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Seattle Water Plant=1 @ 1,100 gpm = 1,100 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Village Water Plant=1 @ 750 gpm = 750 gpm
Existing Pumps @ West Water Plant=1 @ 1,000 gpm = 1,000 gpm
New Pump @ Future Water Plant4 =1 @ 600 gpm = 600 gpm
(5,650 gpm)(1,440 min/day)/(1.25)/(2.4) = 2,712,000 gpd
Total Plant Capacity = 2,370,000 gpd

NOTES: (Corresponding to the numbered items)

1. Existing connection counts are based on billing data provided by the City for August 2023. Daily flow rates are based on well and
surface water meter data provided by the City for September 2020 through August 2023. Projected connection counts are based on
the currently undeveloped lots within the City's system being developed, as well as the developments in the City's ETJ where new
service is to be installed. A value of 2.4 for the maximum daily demand factor was utilized as established by 30 TAC 290.38 (43) in lieu
of 3 years of daily flow data.

2. Thevalues presented for the water wells are based on the 2023 Inspection Report. The flow of 0.6 gpm/conn is taken from the
TCEQ's Chapter 290 criteria. The factor of 2.4 shown in the JC calculations was utilized as the ratio of Maximum Daily Flow (MDF) to
Average Daily Flow (ADF).-Quiddity's criteria is based on being able to pump the MDF with the well running 24 hrs/day and back
calculating the ADF. (24 hr run time)/2.4 = 10 hrs on an average day (600 min). Surface water supply is not included in the supply
capacity because no.amount of water supply.is guaranteed by the City of Houston in the supply contract. Since the City of Houston
cannot guarantee a minimum of 0.35 gpm/connection,Jersey Village is required to have a total well capacity of 0.6 gpm/connection.
Additionally, a new 1,500 gpm well will be required at Future Water-Plant 4.

3. The total storage capacity required by the TCEQ is 200 gpd/conn. Because the GST does not produce any water, it should not be
considered in the calculation of the system capacity in terms of flow.

4. < Elevated storage tank (EST) capacity. must be at least 100 gallons per connection to meet the requirements of 30 TAC 290.45(b).
Since the EST capacity is sufficient, the Hydropneumatic tank capacity is not used in calculating the maximum number of connections
allowed.

5. The TCEQ's minimum requirement for booster pumps is 2 gpm/conn or the ability to meet Peak Hourly Flow (PHF) with the
largest unit at each pump station out of service. The PHF is calculated by using the TCEQ's factor of 1.25 for the ratio of PHF to MDF,
for systems that meet the EST capacity rules of greater than 100 gpd/connection. Multiplying the PHF by the MDF as defined in Note
No. 1 gives us the ratio of PHF to ADF and is equal to 2.4.

| QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Analysis\Capacity Analysis\2023 Water Plant Capacity Analysis.xlsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

74

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT D

PROJECTED 2033 WATER PLANT CAPAC NALYSIS

I:l QUIDDITY

ENGINEERING

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

75

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT D

PROJECTED 2033 WATER PLANT CAPACITY ANALYSIS [ JERSEY %
CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE & )
NOVEMBER 2023 % j( 2
%3: v"“&e
TAR O
1. Demand Conditions
Total Average
Type Connections Unit Flowrate Daily Flow
SF Residential 2,273 250 gpd/conn 568,300 gpd
MF Residential 2,152 125 gpd/conn 269,000 gpd
Commercial 242 1,500 gpd/conn 363,000 gpd
Industrial 259 1,500 gpd/conn 388,500 gpd
Mixed Use 251 375.gpd/conn 94,100 gpd
Irrigation 871 300 gpd/conn 261,300 gpd
Public 67 1,000 gpd/conn 67,000 .gpd
Accountability/Losses 10.0% 223,500 gpd
Total 6,115 2,234,700 gpd
Effective Unit Flowrate Per Connection = 365 gpd/conn
2. Supply Capacity {TAC §290.45(b)(1)(D)(i)} Capacity Flowrate
TCEQ Minimum Required = (0.6 gpm/conn)(6,115 conn) = 3,669 gpm
Existing Well No. 1 @ Village Water Plant: 1 @ 900 gpm = 900 gpm
Existing Well No. 1 @ West Water Plant: 1 @ 1,550 gpm = 1,550 gpm
New Well @ Future Water Plant 4: 1 @ 1,500 gpm = 1,500 gpm
3,950 gpm
(3,950 gpm)(1,440 min/day)/(2.4) = 2,370,000 gpd
Surface Water Supply @ Seattle Water Plant : 1,042 gpm = 1,042 gpm *
New Surface Water Supply @ Water Plant No. 4: 1,500 gpm = 1,500 gpm *

3. Total Storage Capacity {TAC §290.45(b)(1)(D)(ii)}
TCEQ Minimum Required = (200 gal/conn)(6,115 conn) =

Existing Ground Storage Tank @ Seattle Water Plant =1 @ 300,000 gallons =
Existing Ground Storage Tank @ Seattle Water Plant =1 @ 500,000 gallons =
Existing Ground Storage Tank @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 420,000 gallons =

Existing Elevated Storage Tank @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 250,000 gallons =
Existing Ground Storage Tank @ West Water Plant =1 @ 500,000 gallons =

Existing Elevated Storage Tank @ Congo Ln.= 1 @ 500,000 gallons =

4. Elevated Storage Tank Capacity {TAC §290.45(b)(1)(D)(iv)}
TCEQ Minimum Required = (100 gal/conn)(6,115 conn) =

Existing Elevated Storage Tank @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 250,000 gallons =

Existing Elevated Storage Tank @ Congo Ln =1 @ 500,000 gallons =

Existing Pressure Tank @ Village Water Plant =1 @ 25,000 gallons =

1,223,000 gal

300,000 gal
500,000 gal
420,000 gal
250,000 gal
500,000 gal

500,000 gal

2,470,000 gal

611,500 gal

250,000 gal

500,000 gal

750,000 gal

25,000 gal

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

76

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



5. Booster Pump Capacity {TAC §290.45(b)(1)(D)(iii)}

TCEQ Minimum Required = (2 gpm/conn)(6,115 conn) = 12,230 gpm
or (2,234,700 gpd)*(2.4*1.25)/(1,440 min/day) = 4,656 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Seattle Water Plant =2 @ 1,100 gpm = 2,200 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Village Water Plant=1 @ 100 gpm = 100 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Village Water Plant=1 @ 250 gpm = 250 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Village Water Plant=1 @ 500 gpm = 500 gpm
Existing Pumps @ West Water Plant =1 @ 250 gpm = 250 gpm
Existing Pumps @ West Water Plant =1 @ 750 gpm = 750 gpm
Existing Pumps @ West Water Plant =1 @ 1,000 gpm = 1,000 gpm
New Pump @ Future Water Plant4=1 @ 600 gpm = 600 gpm
New Pumps @ Future Water Plant 4 =2 @ 600 gpm = 1,200 gpm
6,850 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Seattle Water Plant=1 @ 1,100 gpm = 1,100 gpm
Existing Pumps @ Village Water Plant=1 @ 750 gpm = 750 gpm
Existing Pumps @ West Water Plant=1 @ 1,000 gpm = 1,000 gpm
New Pump @ Future Water Plant4 =1 @ 600 gpm = 600 gpm
(6,850 gpm)(1,440 min/day)/(1.25)/(2.4) = 3,288,000 gpd
Total Plant Capacity = 2,370,000 gpd

NOTES: (Corresponding to the numbered items)
1. Existing connection counts are based on billing data provided by the City.for August 2023. Daily flow rates are based on well and
surface water meter data provided by the City for September 2020 through August 2023. Projected connection counts are based on the
currently undeveloped lots within the City's.system being developed, aswell as the developments in the City's ETJ where new service is
to be installed. A value of 2.4 for the:maximum daily demand factor was utilized as established by 30 TAC 290.38 (43) in lieu of 3 years of
daily flow data.

2. The values presented for the water wells are/based on the 2020 JC Impact Fee Study.The flow of 0.6 gpm/conn is taken from the
TCEQ's Chapter 290 criteria. The factor of 2.4 shown in the JC calculations was utilized as the ratio of Maximum Daily Flow (MDF) to
Average Daily Flow (ADF). Quiddity's criteria is' based on being able to pump the MDF with the well running 24 hrs/day and back
calculating the ADF. (24 hr run time)/2.4 =10 hrs on an average day (600 min). Surface water supply is not included in the supply
capacity because no amount of water supply is guaranteed by the City of Houston in the supply contract. Since the City of Houston
cannot guarantee a minimum of 0.35gpm/connection, Jersey Village is required to have a total well capacity of 0.6 gpm/connection.

3. The'total storage capacity required by the TCEQ is 200 gpd/conn. Because the GST does not produce any water, it should not be
considered in the calculation of the system capacity in terms of flow.

4. Elevated storage tank (EST) capacity must be at least 100 gallons per connection to meet the requirements of 30 TAC 290.45(b).
Since the EST capacity is sufficient, the Hydropneumatic tank capacity is not used in calculating the maximum number of connections
allowed.

5. The TCEQ's minimum requirement for booster pumps is 2 gpm/conn or the ability to meet Peak Hourly Flow (PHF) with the largest
unit at each pump station out of service. The PHF is calculated by using the TCEQ's factor of 1.25 for the ratio of PHF to MDF, for
systems that meet the EST capacity rules of greater than 100 gpd/connection. Multiplying the PHF by the MDF as defined in Note No. 1
gives us the ratio of PHF to ADF and is equal to 3.0. To meet pumping requirements with the largest pump out of service, a total of four
new 600 gpm pumps are required at Future Water Plant 4.

|1 QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Analysis\Capacity Analysis\2023 Water Plant Capacity Analysis.xlsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

77

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PROJE OST ESTIMA

QUIDDITY
& ENGINEERING

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

78

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF

« yERSEY v PROPOSED WATER FACILITY No. 4
& (% CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. W-14
{ j‘ :: CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
Y Qé‘ NOVEMBER 2023
35 5tan cot
Scope:

The project will consist of construction of 1.0 MG ground storage tank, 1,500 GPM Water Well, 3-600 GPM
booster pumps, Generator, all related piping, foundations, electrical controls, instrumentation, site work and all
additional items needed for completely functional water plant.

Item Unit
No. Description Unit Qty. Price Total @
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $313,000 $313,000
2. One (1) 1,500 GPM Evangeline Aquifer Water Well L.S. 1 2,000,000 2,000,000 (2
3. One (1) Standby Diesel Generator with Fuel Tank L.S. 1 200,000 200,000
4. One (1) 1,000,000 gallon Concrete Ground Storage Tank L.S. 1 1,750,000 1,750,000
5. Three (3) 600 GPM Booster Pumps & Concrete Pad L.S. 1 250,000 250,000
6. Electrical Control & Chemical Building L.S. 1 750,000 750,000
7. Plant Piping, Va!ves, Flttlngs, Thrus_t Blocks and Pipe LS, 1 550,000 550,000
Supports Including Protective Coatings
8. Site Work (Including Fencing, Gate, Restoration) L.S. 1 325,000 325,000
9. Storm Water Pollution Prevention L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
10. Power Extension & Service Meter L.S. 1 100,000 100,000
SUBTOTAL $6,263,000 ©)
Contingencies (20%) $1,253,000
5 YrInflation @ 3.5%/Yr $1,411,000
Engineering & Testing $1,607,000 (5
TOTAL $10,534,000 (©)

Notes:
(1) All Totals have been rounded to the nearest $1,000.

(2) Quiddity does not and cannot guarantee a 1,500 gpm water well can be obtained from this aquifer in this location. Quiddity does not control the
hydraulic conductivity of the aquifer or the water quality produced from the aquifer. Quiddity will hold the Contractor responsible for obtaining the
capacity that has a minimum of 80% aquifer efficiency as measured in draw-down tests. This estimate does not include provisions to improve water
quality if poor water quality is found after the water well is constructed. This estimate includes a one-piece straight well to accommodate the pump
being set in liner, a test hole 200' beyond planned depth, and a submersible or vertical turbine motor.

(3). This cost estimate assumes the water plant site is not located within the 1% annual chance floodplain or within existing wetlands. This estimate does
not include any costs for wetland mitigation, detention basins, mitigation basins, or any other work related to compensating for wetlands or
floodplain impact. This‘estimate assumes the property currently owned by the City of Jersey Village can be utilized to support the water plant
facilities. The estimate does not include costs for determination, dedication, or acquisition of easements or right-of-way; platting; or aesthetic
upgrades.

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

79



ATTACHMENT E

(4) This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. Quiddity Engineering, LLC has no control
over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding or market

conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.
(5) This estimate does not include costs for determination, dedication, or acquisition of easements or right-of-way.

(6) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an added

strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall inflation of 3.7%

over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events noted above, may incre

ase

or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the order of 30-40%, over the
past 36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in connectionwith the events noted above. It

is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

License No.:__120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of LandPurchases, Bond Applications, Loans
or Grants.

J QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV W CIP Cost Estimates.xIsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

80

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST

FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
CITY OF HOUSTON INTERCONNECT No. 2
ORSEY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. W-15
2 %, CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
g " e NOVEMBER 2023
7’%*— oé.
35 Star cot

Scope:

The project will consist of design and construction of a second interconnect with the City of Houston at the
Water Facility No. 4 via 12-inch waterline within ROW along Fairview Street and Taylor Road to serve the

projected development. All utilities are anticipated within the public right-of-way with no easements.

Iltem Unit
No. Description Unit Qty. Price
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $62,000
2. 12" Waterline Extension L.F. 5,000 $130
3. ;Z:;/ ;;ll:llc\)ﬂu:::rnirl\n\t/t;[]cli)nnect No. 2 Plant Piping Ls. 1 300,000
4. Trench Safety Systems L.F. 5,000 2
5. Traffic Control Plan L.S. 1 25,000
6. Dewatering/Well Pointing L.S. 1 15,000
7. Storm Water Pollution Prevention LS. 1 25,000
8. Pavement Replacement S.Y. 500 100
9. Site Restoration L.S. 1 100,000
SUBTOTAL
Contingencies (20%)
10 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr
Engineering & Testing
TOTAL
Notes:

(1) All Totals have been rounded to the nearest $1,000.

Total (1)
$62,000

650,000
()

300,000
10,000
25,000
15,000
25,000
50,000

100,000

$1,237,000 ()

$247,000
$325,000
$326,000

$2,135,000 (4

(2) This estimate does not include costs for determination, dedication, or acquisition of easements or right-of-way; platting; aesthetic upgrades; or

bringing electrical power to the site.

(3) " This estimate represents my/best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. Quiddity Engineering, LLC has no

control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding or
market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

81

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

(4) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an added
strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall inflation of 3.7%
over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events noted above, may
increase or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the order of 30-40%,
over the past 36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in connection with the events
noted above. It is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

License No.:_ 120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications, Loans
or Grants.

[l QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV W CIP Cost Estimates.xIsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

82

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
FM 529 8-INCH & 12-INCH WATER LINE FROM HWY 290 TO JONES RD - SERVICE IN ETJ

JERSEY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. W-16
N "«% CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
b 1( 3 NOVEMBER 2023
v 3
) &
3 Stag ot
Scope:

The project will consist of design and construction of a 12-inch waterline along FM 529 from Jones Road to
Charles Road, an 8-inch water line from FM 529 along Charles Road to Jones and a 12-inch waterline from

Charles Road to Highway 290, including the crossing of Highway 290 .to serve the projected development.
All utilities are anticipated within the public right-of-way with no easements.

Iltem Unit
No. Description Unit Qty. Price Total (1)
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $92,000 $92,000
2. 8" Waterline L.F. 2,800 90 252,000
3. 12" Waterline L.F. 3,800 130 494,000
4. 12" Waterline with 24-inch Steel Casing L.F. 650 750 488,000
5. Fire Hydrants EA. 20 5,000 100,000
6. 8" Gate Valves EA: 4 3,000 12,000
7. 12" Gate Valves EA. 6 4,000 24,000
8. Trench Safety Systems L.F. 7,250 2 15,000
9. Traffic Control Plan L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
10. Dewatering/Well Pointing L.S. 1 15,000 15,000
11. Storm Water Pollution Prevention L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
12. Pavement Replacement S.Y. 1,000 100 100,000
13. Site Restoration L.S. 1 125,000 125,000
SUBTOTAL $1,767,000 (2
Contingencies (20%) $353,000
5 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr $398,000
Engineering & Testing $453,000 @)
TOTAL $2,971,000 ()
Notes:

(1) All Totals have been rounded to the nearest $1,000.

(2) This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. construction industry. Quiddity
Engineering, LLC has no control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or
over competitive bidding or market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

(3) This estimate does not include costs for determination, dedication, or acquisition of easements or right-of-way.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

83

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

(4) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an
added strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall
inflation of 3.7% over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events noted
above, may increase or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the
order of 30-40%, over the past 36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in
connection with the events noted above. It is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the
project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

License No::_ 120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications, Loans
or Grants.

] QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV W CIP Cost Estimates.xIsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

84

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
CHARLES ROAD 8-INCH & WRIGHT ROAD 12-INCH WATER LINE LOOP - SERVICE TO ETJ
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. W-17

& CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
3 % NOVEMBER 2023
A o W
2 S
S sran ot

Scope:
The project will consist of design and construction of an 8-inch waterline from Jones Road west along

Charles Road to Wright Road and a 12-inch waterline south along Wright Road and east along FM 529
connection to the existing 12-inch waterline to serve the projecteddevelopment. All utilities are anticipated
within the public right-of-way with no easements.

ltem Unit
No. Description Unit Qty. Price Total (1)
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $51,000 $51,000
2. 8" Waterline L.F. 2,000 90 180,000
3. 12" Waterline L.F. 3,500 130 455,000
4. Fire Hydrants EA. 17 5,000 85,000
5. 8" Gate Valves EA. 2 3,000 6,000
6. 12" Gate Valves EA. 5 4,000 20,000
7. Trench Safety Systems L.F. 5,500 2 11,000
8. Traffic Control Plan L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
9. Dewatering/Well Pointing L.S. 1 15,000 15,000
10. Storm Water Pollution Prevention L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
11. Pavement Replacement S.Y. 500 100 50,000
12. Site Restoration L.S. 1 100,000 100,000
SUBTOTAL ©$1,023,000 @
Contingencies (20%) $205,000
5 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr $230,000
Engineering & Testing $262,000
TOTAL $1,720,000 (4
Notes:

(1) All Totals have been rounded to the nearest $1,000.

(2) This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. construction industry. Quiddity
Engineering, LLC has no control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or
over competitive bidding or market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

(3) This estimate does not include costs for determination, dedication, or acquisition of easements or right-of-way.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

85

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

(4) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an
added strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall
inflation of 3.7% over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events noted
above, may increase or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the
order of 30-40%, over the past 36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in
connection with the events noted above. It is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the
project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

License No.:_ 120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications, Loans
or Grants.

QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV W CIP Cost Estimates.xIsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

86

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
WRIGHT ROAD 12-INCH WATER LINE FROM CHARLES ROAD TO HWY 290 - SERVICE TO ETJ
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. W-18

RSEY CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
2 I % NOVEMBER 2023
w m
* *
7"‘0 ( §-

_A+

>
S Star cot>

Scope:
The project will consist of design and construction of an 12-inch waterline.along Wright Road from Charles

Road to Hwy 290 and along Hwy 290 from Wright Road to Jones Road to serve the projected development.
All utilities are anticipated within the public right-of-way with no easements.

ltem Unit
No. Description Unit Qty. Price Total (1)
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $51,000 $51,000
2. 12" Waterline L.F. 5,000 130 650,000
3. Fire Hydrants EA. 15 5,000 75,000
4, 12" Gate Valves EA. 6 4,000 24,000
5. Trench Safety Systems L.F. 5,000 2 10,000
6. Traffic Control Plan L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
7. Dewatering/Well Pointing L.S. 1 15,000 15,000
8. Storm Water Pollution Prevention L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
9. Pavement Replacement S.Y. 500 100 50,000
10. Site Restoration L.S. 1 100,000 100,000
SUBTOTAL $1,025,000
Contingencies (20%) $205,000
5 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr $231,000
Engineering & Testing $263,000 ©
TOTAL $1,724,000 (4
Notes:

(1) . All Totals have been rounded to the nearest $1,000.

(2) This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. Quiddity Engineering, LLC has no
control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding
or market conditions: Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

(3) This estimate does not include costs for determination, dedication, or acquisition of easements or right-of-way.

(4) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an
added strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall
inflation of 3.7% over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events noted
above, may increase or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the
order of 30-40%, over the past 36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in
connection with the events noted above. It is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the
project.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

87

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENTE

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:
Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.
License No.:_ 120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond
or Grants.

' QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV W CIP Cost Estimates.xIsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

88

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
FAIRVIEW STREET 12-INCH WATER LINE FROM FM 529 TO TAYLOR ROAD - SERVICE TO ETJ
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. W-19

< JERSEY Y, CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
o
A A NOVEMBER 2023
¥ m
* »*
N9
Hs m“‘s? @
STAR cO e
>
Scope: @
The project will consist of design and construction of 8-inch and 12-inch-waterlines along Fairview Street =
from FM 529 to Taylor Road, along FM 529 from Fairview Road to Wright Road and along Taylor Road and ;
Hwy 290 from Fairview Road to Wright Road to serve the projected development. The majority of utilities ﬂ
are anticipated within the public right-of-way with minimal easements in order to'serve tracts not adjacent %
to public right-of-way. ;
0
~
Item Unit E
No. Description Unit Qty. Price Total (1) -
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $106,000 $106,000 %
2. 8" Waterline L.F. 4,200 90 378,000 E
3. 12" Waterline L.F. 8,200 130 1,066,000 =
4. Fire Hydrants EA. 41 5,000 205,000 E
5. 8" Gate Valves EA. 6 3,000 18,000 E
6. 12" Gate Valves EA. 10 4,000 40,000 E
7. Trench Safety Systems L.F. 12,400 2 25,000 2
8. Traffic Control Plan L.S. 1 30,000 30,000 @)
9. Dewatering/Well Pointing L.S. 1 20,000 20,000 g
10. Storm Water Pollution Prevention L.S. 1 30,000 30,000 E
11. Pavement Replacement S.Y. 750 100 75,000 g
12. Site Restoration L.S. 1 125,000 125,000 o
SUBTOTAL $2,118,000 @ Z
>
H
Contingencies (20%) $424,000 E
10 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr $1,044,000 =
Land Acquisition $890,000 @) i
Engineering & Testing $645,000 S
TOTAL $5,121,000 () =
Notes:

(1) All Totals have been rounded to the nearest $1,000.

(2) This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. Quiddity Engineering, LLC has no
control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding
or market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

89



ATTACHMENT E

(3) Cost assumes 20-ft easement is necessary to serve tracts not adjacent to public right-of-way. Unit cost of track estimated from HCAD 2023
Appraised Valuation and includes estimated soft costs for survey metes and bounds with exhibit and typical land acquisition process. Does not
assume condemnation, contested hearing or litigation.

(4) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an
added strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall
inflation of 3.7% over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection‘with the events noted
above, may increase or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the
order of 30-40%, over the past 36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in
connection with the events noted above. It is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the
project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

LicenseNo.:_120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications, Loans
or Grants.

"J QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV W CIP Cost Estimates.xIsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

90

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
HARMS ROAD 12-INCH WATER LINE FROM FM 529 TO TAYLOR ROAD - SERVICE TO ETJ
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. W-20

o ey, CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
<,
3 % NOVEMBER 2023
NaVs
% $
35 Srar cot®

Scope:
The project will consist of design and construction of an 12-inch waterline along Harms Road from FM 529

to Taylor Road, along FM 529 from Harms Road to Fairview Road and along Taylor Road from Harms Road
to Fairview Road to serve the projected development. All utilities are anticipated within the public right-of-
way with no easements.

ltem Unit
No. Description Unit Qty. Price Total (1)
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $78,000 $78,000
2. 12" Waterline L.F. 8,100 130 1,053,000
3. Fire Hydrants EA. 24 5,000 120,000
4. 12" Gate Valves EA. 10 4,000 40,000
5. Trench Safety Systems L.F. 8,100 2 16,000
6. Traffic Control Plan L.S. 1 30,000 30,000
7. Dewatering/Well Pointing L.S. 1 20,000 20,000
8. Storm Water Pollution Prevention L.S. 1 30,000 30,000
9. Pavement Replacement S.Y. 500 100 50,000
10. Site Restoration L.S. 1 125,000 125,000
SUBTOTAL T $1,562,000 @
Contingencies (20%) $312,000
10 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr $769,000
Engineering & Testing $476,000 @)
TOTAL $3,119,000 ()
Notes:

(1) All Totals have been rounded to the nearest $1,000.

(2) * This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. construction industry. Quiddity
Engineering, LLC has.no control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or
over competitive bidding or market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

(3) This estimate does not include costs for determination, dedication, or acquisition of easements or right-of-way.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

91

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

(4) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an
added strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall
inflation of 3.7% over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events noted
above, may increase or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the
order of 30-40%, over the past 36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in
connection with the events noted above. It is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the
project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_MichaelP. Gurka, P.E.

License No.:_ 120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications, Loans
or Grants.

1 QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV W CIP Cost Estimates.xIsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

92

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST

FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
MUSGROVE LANE 8-INCH & 12-INCH WATER LINE
FROM TAYLOR ROAD TO JONES ROAD ALONG HWY 290

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. W-21
JERSEY . CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
NOVEMBER 2023

of

I

)
*Star coM

%,

q\-’d*c"r}’

i

M"y * 30{\

Scope:

The project will consist of design and construction of an 8-inch waterline along Musgrove Lane and east to
Hwy 290 and a 12-inch waterline along Hwy 290 to Taylor Road to serve the projected development. The
majority of utilities are anticipated within the public right-of-way.with minimal easements in order to serve

tracts not adjacent to public right-of-way.

Item

No. Description
Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits

12" Waterline

8" Waterline

Fire Hydrants

12" Gate Valves

8" Gate Valves

Trench Safety Systems
Traffic Control Plan

O N Uk WNRE

Dewatering/Well Pointing

10. Storm Water Pollution Prevention
11. Pavement Replacement

12. Site Restoration

Notes:
(1) All Totals have been rounded to the nearest $1,000.

Unit
LS.
L.F.
L.F.
EA.
EA
EA.
LF.
LS.
LS.
LS.
S.Y.
LS.

Contingencies (20%)
10 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr

Qty.

1,100
1,500

500
1

SUBTOTAL

Land Acquisition

Engineering & Testing
TOTAL

Unit

Price
$27,000
130
90
5,000
4,000
3,000
2
20,000
15,000
20,000
100
75,000

Total
$27,000
143,000
135,000

40,000
8,000
6,000
5,000

20,000

15,000

20,000

50,000

75,000

$544,000

$109,000
$268,000
$330,000

$1,417,000

(1)

(3)

$166,000

(4)

(2) This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. Quiddity Engineering, LLC has no
control overthe cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding

or market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

93

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

(3) Cost assumes 20-ft easement is necessary to serve tracts not adjacent to public right-of-way. Unit cost of track estimated from HCAD 2023
Appraised Valuation and includes estimated soft costs for survey metes and bounds with exhibit and typical land acquisition process. Does
not assume condemnation, contested hearing or litigation.

(4) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an
added strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall
inflation of 3.7% over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events
noted above, may increase or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation,
on the order of 30-40%, over the past 36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in
connection with the events noted above. It is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the
project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:

General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

License No::_ 120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications, Loans
orGrants.

1 QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV W CIP Cost Estimates.xlsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

94

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST

FOR CONSTRUCTION OF

TAYLOR ROAD 8-INCH & 12-INCH WATER LINE EXTENSION FROM HWY 290 TO ETJ -SERVICE TO ETJ
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. W-22

JERSEY CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
& %, NOVEMBER 2023
& o)
m
NaVs
2 e
T srar ot

Scope:

The project will consist of design and construction of a 12-inch and 8-inch waterline along Taylor Road to the
west of Harms Road to serve the projected development. All utilities are.anticipated within the public right-

of-way with no easements.

Item

No. Description
Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits

12" Waterline

8" Waterline

Fire Hydrants

12" Gate Valves

8" Gate Valves

Trench Safety Systems
Traffic Control Plan

W e N UAEWN PR

Dewatering/Well Pointing

10. Storm Water Pollution Prevention
11. Pavement Replacement

12. Site Restoration

Notes:
(1) All Totals have been rounded to the nearest $1,000.

Unit
L.S.
L.F.
L.F.
EA.
EA.
EA.
L.F.
LS.
LS.
LS.
S.Y.
LS.

Qty.
1

200
800

500
1

SUBTOTAL

Contingencies (20%)

10 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr

Land Acquisition

Engineering & Testing

TOTAL

Unit
Price
$14,000

130

90
5,000
4,000
3,000
2
15,000
10,000
15,000
100
50,000

Total
$14,000
26,000
72,000
20,000
4,000
3,000
2,000
15,000
10,000
15,000
50,000
50,000

$281,000

$56,000
$138,000
$200,000

$86,000

$761,000

(1)

()

(2) This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. construction industry. Quiddity
Engineering, LLC has no control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or
over competitive bidding or market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

(3) Cost assumes 20-ft easement is necessary to serve tracts not adjacent to public right-of-way. Unit cost of track estimated from HCAD 2023
Appraised Valuation and includes estimated soft costs for survey metes and bounds with exhibit and typical land acquisition process. Does

not assume condemnation, contested hearing or litigation.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

95

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT E

(4) This estimate does not include costs for determination, dedication, or acquisition of easements or right-of-way.

(5) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an
added strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall
inflation of 3.7% over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events
noted above, may increase or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation,
on the order of 30-40%, over the past 36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in
connection with the events noted above. It is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the
project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

License No.:__120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications, Loans
or Grants.

1 QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV W CIP Cost Estimates.xlsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

96

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

WASTEWATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PR TS COST ESTI

QUIDDITY
& ENGINEERING

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

97

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
JONES RD LS & FM 529 SERVICE AREA 8-INCH WASTEWATER LINES - SERVICE TO ETJ
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. S-10
CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE

ERSE)y
Xy, NOVEMBER 2023

Y

S Star o>

%\"4 * Cl]"},

A+
N
4,/7' ¥ - at_)"‘\

Scope:
The project consists of design and construction of 8-inch gravity sewer along Charles Road east and west of

Jones Road and an 8-inch gravity sewer from Jones Road to Wright Road in between Charles Road and FM 529
to serve the projected development. The majority of utilities are anticipated within the public right-of-way
with minimal easements in order to serve tracts not adjacent to public right-of-way.

Iltem Unit
No. Description Unit Qty. Price Total (1)
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $36,000 $36,000
2. 8-inch Gravity Sewer L.F. 4,400 90 396,000
3. 48-inch Diameter Manhole EA. 11 5,000 55,000
4. Trench Safety Systems L.F 4,400 2 9,000
5. Traffic Control Plan L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
6. Dewatering/Well Pointing L.S. 1 15,000 15,000
7. Storm Water Pollution Prevention L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
8. Pavement Replacement S.Y. 500 100 50,000
9. Site Restoration L.S. 1 100,000 100,000
SUBTOTAL $711,000 (2
Contingencies (20%) $142,000
5 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr $160,000
Land Acquisition $390,000 @)
Engineering & Testing $152,000
TOTAL $1,555,000 (4)
Notes:

(1) All'Totals have been rounded to the nearest $1,000.

(2) This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. Quiddity Engineering, LLC has no
control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding or
market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

(3) Cost assumes 25-ft easement is necessary to serve tracts not adjacent to public right-of-way. Unit cost of tract estimated from HCAD 2023
Appraised Valuation and includes estimated soft costs for survey metes and bounds with exhibit and typical land acquisition process. Does not
assume condemnation, contested hearing or litigation.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

98

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

(4) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an added
strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall inflation of 3.7%
over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events noted above, may
increase or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the order of 30-40%,
over the past 36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in connection with the events
noted above. It is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

License No::_ 120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications, Loans
or Grants.

J QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV WW CIP Cost Estimates.xlsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

99

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
FM 529 LS SERVICE AREA 8-INCH WASTEWATER LINES - SERVICE TO ETJ
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. S-11
CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE

< yeRSEy
° NOVEMBER 2023

D

S
S Star coM™

%

3\“1 * clr},

&F

Scope:
The project consists of design and construction of an 8-inch gravity sewer along FM 529 east of Jones Rd and

north along Charles Road to serve projected development. This includes a lift station along FM 529 to pump
the waste to the nearby collection system along Jones Road. Also upgrades to the existing Jones Road Lift
Station. The majority of utilities are anticipated within the publicrright-of-way with minimal easements in order
to serve tracts not adjacent to public right-of-way.

Item Unit
No. Description Unit Qty. Price Total (1)
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $83,000 $83,000
2. Lift Station at FM 529 L.S. 1 850,000 850,000
3. Lift Station at Jones Road L.S. 1 170,000 170,000 @)
4. 8-inch Gravity Sewer L.F. 3,400 a0 306,000
5. 48-inch Diameter Manhole EA: 12 5,000 60,000
6. Trench Safety Systems L.F. 3,400 2 7,000
7. Traffic Control Plan L.S. 1 20,000 20,000
8. Dewatering/Well Pointing L.S. 1 15,000 15,000
9. Storm Water Pollution Prevention L.S. 1 20,000 20,000
10. Pavement Replacement S.Y. 500 100 50,000
11. Site Restoration L.S. 1 75,000 75,000
SUBTOTAL $1,656,000 4
Contingencies (20%) $331,000
5 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr $373,000
Land Acquisition $260,000 ()
Engineering & Testing $425,000
TOTAL $3,045,000 (6

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

100

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

Notes:

]
()

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

All Totals have been rounded to the nearest $1,000.

This cost includes a 6' diameter precast wet well with precast valve vault with below ground piping and valves. Assumes the depth of the proposed
lift station finish floor will not exceed 20-feet (20') from finished grade elevation and is not located in any flood hazard areas, 1% annual chance
floodplain or within existing wetlands. This estimate does not include any costs for wetland mitigation, detention basins, mitigation basins, or any
other work related to compensating for wetlands or floodplain impact. The mechanical equipment assumes two (2) 5-HP pumps complete with
base elbows, guide rails, power cables, and lifting chains with a firm single pump capacity of 107 gpm pumping through ~100 linear feet of 4"
diameter PVC force main. This includes on-site electrical equipment, Diesel Generator, Automatic Transfer Switch, NEMA 4X utility service rack;
NEMA 4X stainless steel control panel, transducer controls, cellular auto dialer, duct bank, conduit and wire. Site security assumes 8-ft tall wood
fence. Minimal site restoration is anticipated and cost does not include driveway or access road. City should use'neighboring driveway for access.
This estimate assumes no mitigation basins or detention basin are necessary and site drainage can be discharged via sheet flow off the site
boundary. This estimate does not include a storm water outfall or storm water drainage system of any kind.

This cost includes replacement of three (3) 10-HP pumps complete with base elbows, guide rails, power cables, and lifting chains with a firm single
pump capacity of 575 gpm pumping through 6" diameter PVC force main. This assumes the existing hatches are large enough to accomodate the
new larger pumps and replacement of hatch is not needed. No modifications were assumed to electrical components, controls, header piping,
valves, protective coating, or any other repairs or improvements to the lift station.

This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. Quiddity Engineering, LLC has no
control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding or
market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

Cost assumes 55-ft by 55-ft footprint is necessary for Lift Station site. Cost assumes 25-ft easement is.necessary to serve tracts not adjacent to
public right-of-way. Unit cost of track estimated from HCAD 2023 Appraised Valuation and includes estimated soft costs for survey metes and
bounds with exhibit and typical land acquisition process. Does not assume condemnation, contested hearing or litigation.

This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an added
strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall inflation of 3.7%
over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events noted above, may increase
or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the order of 30-40%, over the

past 36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in connection with the events noted above.

It is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

License No.:_ 120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications, Loans|
or Grants.

[ QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV WW CIP Cost Estimates.xlsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

101

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
PROPOSED TAYLOR ROAD LIFT STATION
& 12-INCH FORCE MAIN TO CASTLEBRIDGE WWTP - SERVICE TO ET)J

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. S-12

o JERSEY % CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
3 1 % NOVEMBER 2023

:"‘-‘# ( o‘g @)
q‘?STAR co““b ;
Scope: a
The project consists of design and construction of 1.1 MGD lift station (Lift Station No. 1) and 12-inch force E
main to serve projected development. The force main will convey the waste collected in the new E
development south of Hwy 290 and cross major highways, intersections, roadways and utilites. All utilities E
are anticipated within the public right-of-way with no easements. o)
>
ltem Unit %
No. Description Unit Qty. Price Total 1 E
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $141,000 $141,000 i
2. Lift Station L.S. 1 1,400,000 1,400,000 (2) %
3. 12-inch Force Main L.F. 2,900 120 348,000 -
4. 12-inch Force Main with 24-inch Steel Casing L.F. 600 750 450,000 E
5. Trench Safety Systems L.F. 3,500 2 7,000 =<
6. Traffic Control Plan L.S. 1 100,000 100,000 E
7. Dewatering/Well Pointing L.S. 1 30,000 30,000 d
8. Storm Water Pollution Prevention L.S. 1 30,000 30,000 %
9. Pavement Replacement S.Y. 2,000 100 200,000 g
10. Site Restoration L.S. 1 120,000 120,000 =~
SUBTOTAL $2,826,000 B ;
=
Contingencies (20%) $565,000 5
10 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr $636,000 o
Land Acquisition $180,000 (4 z
Engineering & Testing $725,000 ;
TOTAL $4,932,000 (© =
=
S
N

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

102



ATTACHMENT F

Notes:

(1)
()

(3)

(4)

(5)
(6)

All Totals have been rounded to the nearest $1,000.

This cost includes a 12-ft (12') diameter precast wet well with precast valve vault with below ground piping and valves. Assumes the depth of
the proposed lift station finish floor will not exceed 27-feet (27') from finished grade elevation and is not located in any flood hazard areas, 1%
annual chance floodplain or within existing wetlands. This estimate does not include any costs for wetland mitigation, detention basins,
mitigation basins, or any other work related to compensating for wetlands or floodplain impact. The mechanical equipment assumes three (3)
25-HP pumps complete with base elbows, guide rails, power cables, and lifting chains with a firm single pump capacity of 1,700 gpm pumping
through ~3,500 linear feet of 12" diameter PVC force main. This includes on-site electrical equipment, Diesel Generator, Automatic Transfer
Switch, NEMA 4X utility service rack; NEMA 4X stainless steel control panel, transducer controls, cellular auto dialer, duct bank, conduit and
wire. Site security assumes 8-ft tall wood fence. Minimal site restoration is anticipated and cost includes driveway or access road. This estimate
assumes no mitigation basins or detention basin are necessary and site drainage can be discharged via sheet flow off the site boundary. This
estimate does not include a storm water outfall or storm water drainage system of any kind.

This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. Quiddity Engineering, LLC has no
control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding
or market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

Cost assumes 75-ft by 75-ft footprint is necessary for Lift Station site. Unit cost of track estimated from HCAD 2023 Appraised Valuation and
includes estimated soft costs for survey metes and bounds with exhibit and typical land acquisition process. Does not assume condemnation,
contested hearing or litigation.

This estimate does not include costs for determination, dedication, or acquisition of easements or right-of-way for utilities.

This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an added
strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall inflation of
3.7% over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events noted above, may
increase or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the order of 30-
40%, over the past 36 months due to the significant deficit.in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in connection with the
events noted above. It is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

License No.:_120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications, Loans
or Grants.

| QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV WW CIP Cost Estimates.xlsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

103

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
WRIGHT ROAD 8-INCH AND 12-INCH
WASTEWATER LINE FROM FM 529 TO HWY 290 - SERVICE TO ETJ
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. §-13

GERSEr CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
3 I % NOVEMBER 2023
m
* *
7{\ ‘ {-:-
Q) &

_A.‘-

K
S Srar cot™

Scope:
The project consists of design and construction of a 12-inch gravity sewer along Wright Road from Lift Station

No. 1 along Hwy 290 then south along Wright Road and an 8-inch gravity sewer extending off of Wright Road
to serve the projected development. The majority of utilities are anticipated within the public right-of-way
with minimal easements in order to serve tracts not adjacent to public right-of-way.

Iltem Unit
No. Description Unit Qty. Price Total (1)
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $52,000 $52,000
2. 8-inch Gravity Sewer L.F. 1,600 a0 144,000
3. 12-inch Gravity Sewer L.F. 4,200 130 546,000
4. 48-inch Diameter Manhole EA. 14 5,000 70,000
5. Trench Safety Systems L.F. 5,800 2 12,000
6. Traffic Control Plan L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
7. Dewatering/Well Pointing L.S. 1 15,000 15,000
8. Storm Water Pollution Prevention L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
9. Pavement Replacement S.Y. 500 100 50,000
10. Site Restoration L.S. 1 100,000 100,000
SUBTOTAL $1,039,000 ()
Contingencies (20%) $208,000
10 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr $234,000
Land Acquisition $250,000 @)
Engineering & Testing $267,000
TOTAL $1,998,000 (4
Notes:

(1) All Totals have been rounded to the nearest $1,000.

(2) This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. Quiddity Engineering, LLC has no
control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding or
market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

(3) Cost assumes 25-ft easement is necessary to serve tracts not adjacent to public right-of-way. Unit cost of track estimated from HCAD 2023
Appraised Valuation and includes estimated soft costs for survey metes and bounds with exhibit and typical land acquisition process. Does not
assume condemnation, contested hearing or litigation.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

104

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

(4) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an added
strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall inflation of 3.7%
over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events noted above, may
increase or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the order of 30-40%,
over the past 36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in connection with the events
noted above. It is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:. Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

License No.:. 120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications, Loans
or Grants.

[ QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV WW CIP Cost Estimates.xlsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

105

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
TAYLOR ROAD 8-INCH, 15-INCH, & 18-INCH WASTEWATER LINE - SERVICE TO ETJ
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. S-14

S
(& JERSEY D CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
£ % NOVEMBER 2023
W Vs
3, &
¥ 57ar ot
Scope:

The project consists of design and construction of a 18-inch gravity sewer along Taylor Road from Hwy 290 to
Fairview Street, a 15-inch gravity sewer from Fairview Street to Harms Road, an 8-inch gravity sewer along
Musgrove Lane and an 8-inch gravity sewer along Taylor Road west of Harms Road to serve the projected
development. The majority of utilities are anticipated within the public right-of-way with minimal easements
in order to serve tracts not adjacent to public right-of-way.

Iltem Unit
No. Description Unit Qty. Price Total 1)
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $48,000 $48,000
2. 8-inch Gravity Sewer L.F. 1,500 a0 135,000
3. 15-inch Gravity Sewer L.F. 1,600 150 240,000
4. 18-inch Gravity Sewer L.F. 1,400 180 252,000
5. 48-inch Diameter Manhole EA. 12 5,000 60,000
6. Trench Safety Systems L.F. 3,000 2 6,000
7. Traffic Control Plan L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
8. Dewatering/Well Pointing L.S. 1 15,000 15,000
9. Storm Water Pollution Prevention L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
10. Pavement Replacement S.Y. 500 100 50,000
11. Site Restoration L.S. 1 100,000 100,000
SUBTOTAL $956,000 ()
Contingencies (20%) $191,000
10 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr $215,000
Land Acquisition $410,000 ®)
Engineering & Testing $245,000
TOTAL $2,017,000 (4
Notes:

(1) All Totals have been rounded to the nearest $1,000.

(2) This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. Quiddity Engineering, LLC has no
control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding or
market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

(3) Cost assumes 25-ft easement is necessary to serve tracts not adjacent to public right-of-way. Unit cost of track estimated from HCAD 2023
Appraised Valuation and includes estimated soft costs for survey metes and bounds with exhibit and typical land acquisition process. Does not
assume condemnation, contested hearing or litigation.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

106

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

(4) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an added
strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall inflation of 3.7%
over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events noted above, may
increase or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the order of 30-40%,
over the past 36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in connection with the events
noted above. It is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

License No.:_ 120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility.of Land Purchases, Bond Applications, Loans
or Grants.

" J QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV WW CIP Cost Estimates.xlsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

107

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
FAIRVIEW STREET 8-INCH AND 12-INCH
WASTEWATER LINE FROM FM 529 TO TAYLOR ROAD -SERVICE TO ET)J
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. S-15

GOSEY CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
2 % NOVEMBER 2023
W m
*x *
Y
% S
Star cot®

Scope:
The project consists of design and construction of a 12-inch gravity sewer along Fairview Street and 8-inch

gravity sewer lines extending off of Fairview Street to serve the projected development. The majority of utilities
are anticipated within the public right-of-way with minimal easements in order to serve tracts not adjacent to
public right-of-way. to serve projected development.

Iltem Unit
No. Description Unit Qty. Price Total 1)
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $78,000 $78,000
2. 8-inch Gravity Sewer L.F. 5,800 90 522,000
3. 12-inch Gravity Sewer L.F. 4,000 130 520,000
4. 48-inch Diameter Manhole EA. 29 5,000 145,000
5. Trench Safety Systems L.F. 9,800 2 20,000
6. Traffic Control Plan L.S. 1 30,000 30,000
7. Dewatering/Well Pointing L.S. 1 20,000 20,000
8. Storm Water Pollution Prevention L.S. 1 30,000 30,000
9. Pavement Replacement SY. 750 100 75,000
10. Site Restoration L.S. 1 125,000 125,000
SUBTOTAL $1,565,000 (2
Contingencies (20%) $313,000
10 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr $352,000
Land Acquisition $1,290,000 B
Engineering & Testing $401,000
TOTAL $3,921,000 ¥
Notes:

(1) All Totals have beenrounded to the nearest $1,000.

(2) This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. Quiddity Engineering, LLC has no control
over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding or market
conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

(3) Cost assumes 25-ft easement is necessary to serve tracts not adjacent to public right-of-way. Unit cost of track estimated from HCAD 2023
Appraised Valuation and includes estimated soft costs for survey metes and bounds with exhibit and typical land acquisition process. Does not
assume condemnation, contested hearing or litigation.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

108

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

(4) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an added
strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall inflation of 3.7%
over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events noted above, may increase
or decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the order of 30-40%, over the
past 36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in connection with the events noted above. It
is recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

License No.:_120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications,
Loans or Grants.

] QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV WW CIP Cost Estimates.xlsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

109

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
HARMS ROAD 8-INCH AND 12-INCH
WASTEWATER LINE FROM FM 529 TO TAYLOR ROAD - SERVICE TO ETJ
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. S-16
& JERSEY CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE

j NOVEMBER 2023
S

S Star cot

~ *Ciry

4+
N

Scope:
The project consists of design and construction of a 12-inch gravity sewer along Harms Road and an 8-inch

gravity sewer extending off of Harms Road to serve the projected development. The majority of utilities are
anticipated within the public right-of-way with minimal easements in order to serve tracts not adjacent to public
right-of-way.

ltem Unit
No. Description Unit Qty. Price Total 1)
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $50,000 $50,000
2. 8-inch Gravity Sewer L.F. 1,400 90 126,000
3. 12-inch Gravity Sewer L.F. 4,000 130 520,000
4, 48-inch Diameter Manhole EA. 14 5,000 70,000
5. Trench Safety Systems L.F. 5,400 2 11,000
6. Traffic Control Plan L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
7. Dewatering/Well Pointing L.S. 1 15,000 15,000
8. Storm Water Pollution Prevention L.S. 1 25,000 25,000
9. Pavement Replacement SY. 500 100 50,000
10. Site Restoration L.S. 1 100,000 100,000
SUBTOTAL $992,000 (2
Contingencies (20%) $198,000
10 Yr Inflation @ 3.5%/Yr $223,000
Land Acquisition $200,000
Engineering & Testing $254,000
TOTAL $1,867,000 4
Notes:

(1) All Totals have beenrounded to the nearest $1,000.

(2) This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. Quiddity Engineering, LLC has no control
over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding or market
conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

(3) Cost assumes 25-ft easement is necessary to serve tracts not adjacent to public right-of-way. Unit cost of track estimated from HCAD 2023 Appraised
Valuation and includes estimated soft costs for survey metes and bounds with exhibit and typical land acquisition process. Does not assume
condemnation, contested hearing or litigation.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

110

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

(4) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an added
strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall inflation of 3.7%
over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events noted above, may increase or
decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the order of 30-40%, over the past
36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in connection with the events noted above. It is
recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

License No.: 120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications,
Loans or Grants.

J QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV WW CIP Cost Estimates.xIsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

111

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

CLASS 3 ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
CASTLEBRIDGE WWTP EXPANSION - SERVICE IN CITY LIMITS & ETJ
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT No. S-17
CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE

eRSEy
* Xl NOVEMBER 2023

Y

S Star cot

%\ﬂ * CI]"},

_a‘*'
«
Yy 30%

Scope:
The project consists of design and construction of facility improvements and expansion at the Castlebridge

WWTP to serve the projected demand from new development.

Item Unit
No. Description Unit Qty. Price Total (1)
1. Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance, Permits L.S. 1 $500,000 $500,000
2. Lift Station L.S. 1 $1,500,000 $1,500,000
3. Headworks L.S. 1 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
4. Aeration Basin L.S. 1 $1,200,000 $1,200,000
5. Aerobic Digesters L.S. 1 $1,800,000 $1,800,000
6. Chlorine Contact Basin, Dechlorination, and (6 1 $1,200,000 $1,200,000
Flow Measurement
7. Blowers & Accessories L.S. 1 $1,200,000 $1,200,000
8. Non-Potable Water Pumping Station L.S. 1 $350,000 $350,000
9. Chemical Building L.S. 1 $500,000 $500,000
10. Control Building L.S. 1 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
11. Yard Piping, Fittings, Valves, Supports, etc. L.S. 1 $800,000 $800,000
12. Site Electrical Work L.S. 1 $500,000 $500,000
13. Site Rwork L.S. 1 300,000 $300,000
SUBTOTAL $11,350,000
Contingencies (20%) $2,270,000
5 Yr Inflation @ 3.7%/Yr $2,713,000
Engineering $3,267,000
TOTAL $19,600,000 ()
Notes:

(1) This estimate is prepared for preliminary cost planning purposes for an expansion of the Castlewood WWTP from a 0.8 MGD permitted facility to a
1.1 MGD permitted facility. Grab sampling from the City was used as a preliminary determination of influent loading, and those samples exceeded
the design loading of the prior design. The City shall conduct composite influent sampling in accordance with the TCEQ Rules and Regulations to
determine the appropriate influent pollutant design basis for this WWTP. This cost also assumes that all of the required facilities will be constructed
on the existing property, and no additional costs are included for property or buffer zone aquisition.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

112

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT F

(2) This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. Quiddity Engineering, LLC has no control
over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding or market
conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

(3) This estimate does not include inflation or escalation. Market conditions remain volatile due to, but not limited to, labor shortages, material
shortages, and supply chain disruptions since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic. More recently, market conditions are experiencing an added
strain due to recent and ongoing global conflicts. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Index reported an average overall inflation of 3.7%
over the last 12 months. The unknown decisions of federal government monetary policy, in connection with the events noted above, may increase or
decrease the current inflation rates. In addition to inflation, Quiddity has seen a significant market escalation, on the order of 30-40%, over the past
36 months due to the significant deficit in supply versus demand in the local construction industry in connection with the events noted above. It is
recommended the Client take these items in consideration when preparing the budget for the project.

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning

Under the Authority of:

Engineer:_Michael P. Gurka, P.E.

License No.:_120374

It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for
Feasibility of Land Purchases, Bond Applications,
Loans or Grants.

"l QUIDDITY

K:\05440\05440-0013-01 CIP & Impact Fee Study\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COJV WW CIP Cost Estimates.xlsx

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

113

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT G

CITY OF HOUSTON — IMPACT FEE SERVICE UNI IVALENT TA

QUIDDITY
& ENGINEERING

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-23290 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

114

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



ATTACHMENT G

TAMHOUSTON IMPACT FEE SERVICE UNIT

I: Il PUBLIC WORKS EQUIVALENT TABLE

How to calculate:

Multiply Service Units Equivalent (SUE) by Sq ft, Occ, number of bowls etc...(SUE
column x Per column) to obtain the "approximate". total number of service units.

Recom mended S US are based on 1 2 0 SU = 250 g pd L * Please keep in mind that some proposed developments may require multiple SUEs

Service Unit

Line No. Type of Development Equivalent

1. Bakery 0.0019 Square Foot
2. Banquet Hall (No Cooking, Warming Kitchen Only) 0.0200 Occupant
3. Barber Shop 0.6048 Bowl
4, Beauty Shop or Beauty Salon 0.6048 Bowl
5. Bowling Alley (Dining Additional Charge) 0.8000 Lane
6. Car Repair (Office Additional Charge) 0.00020 Square Foot
. Carwash, Tunnel, Self-Service 8.00 Carwash
8. Carwash, Tunnel, With Attendant 39.60 Carwash
9. Carwash, Wand Type, Self-Serve 1.54 Carwash Bay
10. Church or Fellowship Hall 0.0037 Occupant
7. Club, Tavern, or Lounge 0.0399 Occupant
12. Concert Hall 0.0399 Occupant
0.4032 Member
13. Country Club 0.1008 Gliaat
14. Dance School or Dance Studio 0.0399 Occupant
18, Day Care Center 0.0399 Occupant
16. Dormitory (Dining Additional Charge) 0.3604 Bed
17. Fire Station (Dining Additional Charge) 0.3604 Capita
18. Fitness Center/Club — Freestanding 0.0015 Square Foot
19. Fitness Club.= Within Shopping Center 0.0399 Occupant
20. Funeral Home (Services Per Week) 0.39 Service
21. Gas Station with Carwash 7 11.78 Station
22, Gas Station Without Carwash 2.21 Station
23. Grocery Store, 5,000-28,999 Sq. Ft 0.00033 Square Foot
24, Grocery Store, 29,000 + Sq. Ft 0.0009 Square Foot
25. Homeless Shelter (No Cooking or Dining) 0.1323 Bed
26 Hospital (Dining Additional Charge)) 0.8001 Bed
27. Hotel or Motel, With or W/O Kitchenettes 0.7554 Room
28. Manufacturing 0.00020 Square Foot
29. Mobile Home Park 1.00 Space
30. Movie Theater 0.0200 Seat
; : . 0.0004 Square Foot
3., Nail Salon (Manicure or Pedicure) 0.3024 Bowl
32. Nursing Home (Salon & Dining Additional Charge) 0.3604 Bed
33. Office (Includes Studio, Therapy & Massage) 0.000237 Square Foot
34. Park 0.0200 Occupant
35. Post Office, Excluding Dock 0.000320 Square Foot
36. Prison 0.3654 Capita
37. Racquetball Court 0.6426 Court
38. Recreational Vehicle Park 0.3000 Vehicle
39. Residence, Apartment with Washer / Dryer 0.4762 Unit
HoustonPermittingCenter.org 1 revised: August 26, 2019
832.394.8888 Form UA-0005
115

$20C ‘01 TIIdV NO d'TAH 34 OL ONILAAN dHL 04 LAMIVd ONLLAAI DVID



ATTACHMENT G

N1JHOUSTON IMPACT FEE SERVICE UNIT

|;||§ PUBLIC WORKS EQUIVALENT TABLE
. Service Unit

Line No. Type of Development Equivalent Per
40. Residence. Apartment Without Washer / Dryer 0.4046 Unit
41. Residence, Condominium 0.4762 Unit
42 Residence, Single Family or Townhouse, Up To 3000 Sq. Ft 1.000 Unit

3 (Additional Charge Of 0.0002 SU Per Sq. Ft Over 3000 Sq. Ft) 4
43. Restaurant, Fast Food 0.0021 Square Foot
44. Restaurant, Full Service / Dining / Bar Area 0.0033 Square Foot
45. Retail 0.000281 Square Foot
46. School (College, High, Middle, Elementary) 0.0198 Seat
47. Skating Rink 0.0200 Capita
48. Stadium 0.0126 Seat
49, Swimming Pool 0.0200 Swimmer
50. Toilet (Park Amenity) 0.1640 Toilet
51. Transportation Terminal (Dining Additional Charge) 0.0200 Passenger
52. Warehouse 0.000121 Square Foot
h3. Washeteria 0.5639 Machine
54. Water Dispensing Unit — Freestanding 4.5630 Unit
HoustonPermittingCenter.org 2 revised: August 26, 2019

832.394.8888 Form UA-0005

116

#2027 ‘01 TIIdV NO d'TdH A9 OL ONILAAN HHL 404 LAMIVd ONLLAAI DVID



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE
CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS - AGENDA REQUEST

AGENDA DATE: April 10, 2024 AGENDA ITEM: D

AGENDA SUBJECT: Discuss and take appropriate action concerning fiscal year 2023-
2024 growth rate, capital improvement projects completed, and impact fees collected, and review
the capital improvements projects identified in the Capital Improvements Plan in order to prepare
the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee’s April 2024 Semi-Annual Progress Report for
presentation to City Council on April 22, 2024.

Dept/Prepared By: Lorri Coody for Miesha Johnson, Community Development Manager
Date Submitted:  April 5, 2023

EXHIBITS: April Semiannual Progress Report - Proposed
Exhibit A - Project Payment Report
Exhibit B - Trial Balance Report

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Sec. 395.052 of the Local Government Code requires a
periodic update of Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan at least every five years.
By law the update must be done by a professional engineer. In accordance with these provisions,
on November 29, 2023, the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee met with Consultants from
Quiddity Engineering, LLC formerly known as Jones | Carter in order to review and discuss the
2023 Update Study concerning land use assumptions, capital improvements plan and impact fees,
which was prepared by these Consultants and recommended that City Council approve the Draft
Water and Wastewater Impact Fee Study Report.

On December 18, 2023, under Ordinance 2023-31, City Council adopted the updated Land Use
Assumptions, a Capital Improvements Plan, and Impact Fees for water and wastewater facilities
in accordance with Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code.

Sec. 395.058(c)(4) of the Local Government Code requires that this Committee file semiannual
reports with respect to the progress of the capital improvements plan and report to the City Council
any perceived inequities in implementing the plan or imposing the impact fee.

Accordingly, this meeting is to review the status of the impact fee eligible projects and make sure
that any expended impact fee dollars are being spent only on these projects. The impact fee eligible
projects are as follow:

117

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



Water System Capital Improvement Projects:

No. \ Description of Project Cost
W-12 | Water Master Plan $125,000
W-13 | Impact Fee Study & Rate Analysis $75,000
W-14 | Proposed Water Facility #4 $10,534,000
W-15 | City of Houston Interconnect No. 2 $2,135,000
W-16 FM 529 8” & 12” Water Line from Harms Rd to Hwy 290 — Service to

ETJ $2,971,000
W-17 | Charles Rd 8” & Wright Rd 12” Water Line Loop — Service to ETJ $1,720,000
W-18 | Wright Rd 12” Water Line from Charles Rd to Hwy 290 — Service to ETJ | $1,724,000
W-19 | Fairview St 12” Water Line from FM 529 to Taylor Rd — Service to ETJ | $5,121,000
W-20 | Harms Rd 12” Water Line from FM 529 to Taylor Rd — Service to ETJ $3,119,000
Wl Musgrove Ln 8” & 12” Water Line from Taylor Rd to Jones Rd Along | $1,417,000

Hwy 290 — Service to ETJ

Taylor Rd 8” & 12” Water Line Extension from Hwy 290 to Edge of ETJ | $761,000
W-22 .

— Service to ETJ

Total | $29,702,000

Wastewater System Capital Improvement Projects:

Description of Project

S-6 | Wastewater Master Plan $175,000

S-7 | Impact Fee Study & Rate Analysis $75,000

S-10 | Jones Rd LS & FM 529 Service Area 8" Wastewater Line - Service to ETJ | $1,555,000

S-11 | FM 529 LS Service Area 8" Wastewater Lines - Service to ETJ $3,045,000

S-12 | Proposed Taylor Road Lift Station & 12" Force Main to Castlebridge | $4,932,000
WWTP - Service to ETJ

S-13 | Wright Rd 8" & 12” Wastewater Line from FM 529 to Hwy 290 - Service | $1,998,000
to ETJ

S-14 | Taylor Road 8", 15", & 18" Wastewater Line - Service to ETJ $2,017,000

S-15 | Fairview St 8" & 12” Wastewater Line from FM 529 to Taylor Rd - Service | $3,921,000
to ETJ

S-16 | Harms Rd 8" & 12” Wastewater Line from FM 529 to Taylor Rd - Service | $1,867,000
to ETJ

S-17 | Castlebridge WWTP Expansion $ 19,600,000

Total | $39,185,000

In making your review, maintenance and rehabilitation expenses are not impact fee eligible.
Additionally, it is important to note that it is common that impact fees are collected but not always
spent. This is acceptable in that these fees will be used in the future for impact fee eligible projects.

The Committee is to review the information presented and recommend whether another impact fee
study is needed to increase our impact fees and/or include additional impact fee eligible projects
on the CIP list.

An increase in impact fees or an addition of impact fee eligible projects to the CIP list can only be
done by a professional engineer; therefore, should the Committee find that changes are needed;
the recommendation will be to hire a consultant to re-evaluate the impact fee structure. Should
the Committee find that no changes are needed, the recommendation will be that the current impact

2

118

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



fee structure is sufficient to support the proposed Water and Wastewater Impact Fee Eligible
Projects listed in the Capital Improvements Plan and it is not necessary to conduct an Impact Fee
Study to reevaluate the City’s impact fee structure.

In completing your review, the Committee will prepare the April 2024 Semiannual Progress
Report outlining the findings of your review. To facilitate this process, a proposed report is
included in the meeting packet. The final report will be submitted to Council on April 22, 2024.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Discuss and take appropriate action concerning fiscal year 2023-2024 growth rate, capital
improvement projects completed, and impact fees collected, and review the capital improvements
projects identified in the Capital Improvements Plan in order to prepare the Capital Improvements
Advisory Committee’s April 2024 Semi-Annual Progress Report for presentation to City Council
on April 22, 2024.

119

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



s&l‘sﬂ P,

o %

3}

%’Tm w,ﬁ'f&.

CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE
SEMIANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT - APRIL 10, 2024

The Capital Improvements Advisory Committee has met in order to review current land use
assumptions, capital improvements plan and impact fees imposed, in accordance with Chapter 395 of
the Texas Local Government Code.

Background: Sec. 395.052 of the Local Government Code requires a periodic update of Land Use
Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan at least every five years. By law the update must be done
by a professional engineer. In accordance with these provisions, on November 29, 2023, the Capital
Improvements Advisory Committee met with Consultants from Jones | Carter in order to review and
discuss the 2023 Update Study concerning land use assumptions, capital improvements plan and
impact fees, which was prepared by these Consultants and recommended that City Council approve
the Draft Water and Wastewater Impact Fee Study Report.

On December 18, 2023 under Ordinance 2023-31, City Council adopted the updated Land Use
Assumptions, a Capital Improvements Plan, and Impact Fees for water and wastewater facilities in
accordance with Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code.

Progress: During the first six months of FY 2023-2024, no permits were issued as shown in the
Project Payment Report attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A.

As of March 31, 2024, the City’s Impact Fee Fund has a Cash Balance of $1,201,428.74 as reflected
in the Trial Balance Report attached here to and made a part hereof as Exhibit B.

Impact Fee Eligible Projects Identified in the Capital Improvements Plan:
The following is a listing of both Water and Wastewater Impact Fee Eligible Projects identified in the
Capital Improvements Plan for future projected growth:

Water System Capital Improvement Projects:

No. Description of Project Cost
W-12 | Water Master Plan = Ongoing $125,000
W-13 | Impact Fee Study & Rate Analysis $75,000
W-14 | Proposed Water Facility #4 $10,534,000
W-15 | City of Houston Interconnect No. 2 $2,135,000
W-16 | FM 529 8” & 12” Water Line from Harms Rd to Hwy 290 — Service to ETJ $2,971,000
W-17 | Charles Rd 8” & Wright Rd 12” Water Line Loop — Service to ETJ $1,720,000
W-18 | Wright Rd 12” Water Line from Charles Rd to Hwy 290 — Service to ETJ $1,724,000
W-19 | Fairview St 12” Water Line from FM 529 to Taylor Rd — Service to ETJ $5,121,000
W-20 | Harms Rd 12” Water Line from FM 529 to Taylor Rd — Service to ETJ $3,119,000

Musgrove Ln 8” & 12” Water Line from Taylor Rd to Jones Rd Along Hwy | $1,417,000
W-21 :
290 — Service to ETJ
Taylor Rd 8” & 12” Water Line Extension from Hwy 290 to Edge of ETJ — $761,000
W-22 .
Service to ETJ
Total | $29,702,000

120

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



Wastewater System Capital Improvement Projects:

No. Description of Project Cost
S-6 | Wastewater Master Plan $175,000
S-7 | Impact Fee Study & Rate Analysis $75,000

S-10 | Jones Rd LS & FM 529 Service Area 8" Wastewater Line - Service to ETJ $1,555,000

S-11 | FM 529 LS Service Area 8" Wastewater Lines - Service to ETJ $3,045,000

S-12 | Proposed Taylor Road Lift Station & 12" Force Main to Castlebridge WWTP - | $4,932,000
Service to ETJ

S-13 | Wright Rd 8" & 12” Wastewater Line from FM 529 to Hwy 290 - Service to ETJ $1,998,000

S-14 | Taylor Road 8", 15", & 18" Wastewater Line - Service to ETJ $2,017,000

S-15 | Fairview St 8" & 12” Wastewater Line from FM 529 to Taylor Rd - Service to | $3,921,000
ETJ

S-16 | Harms Rd 8" & 12” Wastewater Line from FM 529 to Taylor Rd - Service to $1,867,000
ETJ

S-17 | Castlebridge WWTP Expansion $ 19,600,000

Total | $39,185,000
Recommendations:

After duly considering all the information before it, the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee
recommends to Council that:

The current impact fee structure is sufficient to support the proposed Water and Wastewater
Impact Fees Eligible Projects listed in the Capital Improvements Plan and it is not necessary to conduct

and Impact Fee Study to reevaluate the City’s impact fee structure at this time.

__The current impact fee structure is not sufficient to support the proposed Water and Wastewater
Impact Fees Eligible Projects listed in the Capital Improvements Plan and it is necessary that the City
hire a consultant to conduct an Impact Fee Study to reevaluate the City’s impact fee structure. The

budget for this effort is already approved.

Signed and approved this the 10th day of April 2024.

Rick Faircloth, Chairman

ATTEST:
Wik,
\\\\\\ B ",
S‘L@fff--?fi}’ 4,
Lorri Coody, City Secretary g

121

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN AHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



Fee Specific "Impact Waste" and "Impact Water"

Date Paid from Fees feed: 10/01/2023 - 03/31/2024

TITLE AMOUNT PAID

$0.00

$0.00

March 25, 2024 at 2:07 PM

Fee Specific "Impact Waste" and "Impact Water"

DATE PAID TEMPLATE NAME

PROJECT ADDRESS

10/01/2023 - 03/31/2024

Generated by Ashley Lopez Page: 1/1

$20T ‘01 TIAdV NO A'TdH A4 OL ONILAAN dAHL 404 LAMOVd ONILAAN DVID



Trial Balance

01 yERSE "
3 (Qz; Jersey Village, TX Account Summary
* * * Date Range: 10/01/2023 - 03/31/2024
.;'!-
N
Period Period
Account Name Beginning Balance Total Debits Total Credits Net Change Ending Balance
Fund: 04 - IMPACT FEE FUND

04-0-0001 CASH 198,809.30 0.00 81,478.30 -81,478.30 117,331.00
04-0-0005 CASH INVESTED 1,060,244.36 23,853.38 0.00 23,853.38 1,084,097.74
04-0-0115 ACCRUED INTEREST 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0o
04-0-0401 DUE FROM GENERAL FUND 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 @O
04-0-0402 DUE FROM UTILITY FUND 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 @0
04-0-0403 DUE FROM DEBT SERVICE FND 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
04-0-0405 DUE FROM MOTEL TAX FUND 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50
04-0-0406 DUE FROM ASSET FORF. FUND 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Tbo
04-0-0409 DUE FROM DISBURSEMENT FND 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ﬁ)o
04-0-1010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ?oo
04-0-1401 DUE TO GENERAL FUND 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 %O
04-0-1402 DUE TO UTILITY FUND -65,743.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 —65,74?32
04-0-1403 DUE TO DEBT SERVICE FUND 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 895)0
04-0-1405 DUE TO MOTEL TAX FUND 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 WO
04-0-1406 DUE TO ASSET FORF. FUND 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Tbo
04-0-1499 DUE TO DISBURSEMENT FUND 273.00 38,829.54 38,745.54 84.00 35%0
04-0-2050 EXPENDITURE CONTROL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
04-0-2060 REVENUE CONTROL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
04-0-2100 PRIOR YEAR FUND BALANCE -639,797.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 —639,79,1,?5
04-0-2104 RESERVED WATER CAPACITY -216,370.91 0.00 0.00 0.00 —216,37@1
04-0-2105 RESERVED W/W CAPACITY -337,414.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 —337,41@18
04-0-2106 RESERVED- WATER DISTRIBUTION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 g)o
04-0-2107 RESERVED-W/W COLLECTION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Do
04-43-8547 WATER DISTRIBUTION 0.00 31.50 94.50 -63.00 -63.00
04-43-8548 SEWER PLANT CAPACITY 0.00 10.50 31.50 -21.00 -24=00
04-43-8549 WATER PLANT CAPACITY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
04-43-8551 SEWER COLLECTION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
04-43-9601 INTEREST EARNED 0.00 0.00 23,853.38 -23,853.38 -23,853+38
04-45-5515 CONSULTANT SERVICES 0.00 81,478.30 0.00 81,478.30 81,473.30
04-45-9761 TRANSFER TO UTILITY FUND 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 go
Fund 04 Total: 0.00 144,203.22 144,203.22 0.00 wo
Report Total: 0.00 144,203.22 144,203.22 0.00 @o

=i

o

Z

>

w

z

=

[S=Y

&

[\

(=

[\

N
3/26/2024 2:38:41 PM Page 1 of 2

123



Trial Balance Date Range: 10/01/2023 - 03/31/2024
Fund Summary

Fund Beginning Balance Total Debits Total Credits Ending Balance
04 - IMPACT FEE FUND 0.00 144,203.22 144,203.22 0.00
Report Total: 0.00 144,203.22 144,203.22 0.00
@)
[S=-]
>
(@)
=
=
-
[
Z
Q
w
>
.
=
-
=S|
o
~
-
=
=
=
=
-
==
Z
Q
-]
o
=
=
=
=
=
=i
o
Z
>
w
=
(&
=
k.
S
N
(=
N
N
3/26/2024 2:38:41 PM Page 2 of 2

124



	2024-04-10_CIAC_Agenda WEB
	B - Citizens' Comments
	C - Minutes
	2023-11-29_CIAC_Minutes WEB
	EXA to the 2023-11-29 Minutes
	CIAC - Written Comments - Impact Fees MG Edits WEB
	CIAC - Written Comments - Impact Fees MG Edits WEB
	EXA - Draft 2023 CIP-Impact Fee Study Update Rpt
	Cover Page
	Table of Contents
	Executive Summary
	1.0 - Introduction
	2.0 - Planned Growth Projections
	2.1 - Population
	2.2 - Existing System
	2.3 - Land Use Plan
	2.4 - Future Growth
	2.4.1 - 5-Year Projection Connections
	2.4.2 - 10-Year Projection Connections


	3.0 - Water System Capital Improvements Plan
	3.1 - Existing Water System Evaluation
	3.1.1 - Existing Water Infrastructure
	3.1.2 - Existing Water Demands
	3.1.3 - Existing Water System Capacity Analysis

	3.2 - Future Water System Evaluation
	3.2.1 - Methodology of Projected Water Demands
	3.2.2 - 5-Year Water Projections
	3.2.3 - 10-Year Water Projections
	3.2.4 - Future Water System Capacity Analysis

	3.3 - Water Capital Improvements Plan

	4.0 - Wastewater System Capital Improvements Plan
	4.1 - Existing Wastewater Infrastructure
	4.1.1 - Existing Wastewater Infrastructure
	4.1.2 - Existing Wastewater Flows
	4.1.3 - Existing Wastewater System Capacity Analysis

	4.2 - Future Wastewater System Evaluation
	4.2.1 - Methodology of Wastewater Flow Projections
	4.2.2 - 5-Year Wastewater Projections
	4.2.3 - 10-Year Wastewater Projections
	4.2.4 - Future Wastewater System Capacity Analysis

	4.3 - Wastewater Capital Improvements Plan

	5.0 - Impact Fee Analysis
	5.1 - Service Units
	5.2 - Water and Wastewater Attributable Improvements
	5.3 - Maximum Impact Fee Calculation

	6.0 - Impact Fee Adoption
	Exhibit 1 - Current Land Use Plan
	Exhibit 2 - Future Land Use Plan
	Exhibit 3 - Water System Improvements
	Exhibit 4 - Wastewater System Improvements
	Attachment A - Texas Local Government Code Chapter 395
	Attachment B - Existing Water Plant Capacity Analysis
	Attachment C - Projected 2028 Water Plant  Capacity Analysis
	Attachment D - Projected 2033 Water Plant Capacity Analysis
	Attachment E - Water Capital Improvement Plan Projects Cost Estimates
	Attachment F - Wastewater Capital Improvement Plan Projects Cost Estimates
	Attachment G - City of Houston Impact Fee Service Unit Equivalency Table






	D - 2024 April Rpt
	ARF - CIAC April 2024
	Proposed CIAC April 2024 Rpt
	CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE
	Background:  Sec. 395.052 of the Local Government Code requires a periodic update of Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan at least every five years. By law the update must be done by a professional engineer. In accordance with these prov...
	Progress:  During the first six months of FY 2023-2024, no permits were issued as shown in the Project Payment Report attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A.
	Impact Fee Eligible Projects Identified in the Capital Improvements Plan:
	Recommendations:

	ATTEST:

	EX A - Impact Fee Report
	Exh B - Impact Fee Trial Balance 03-31-2024




